
 
 
 
 

 
 

- 1 - 

 
Notice of a meeting of 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Wednesday, 11 May 2011 
6.00 pm 

Municipal Offices, Promenade,Cheltenham, GL50 9SA 
 

Membership 
Councillors: Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter (Vice-Chair), Jacky Fletcher, 

Rob Garnham, Penny Hall (Chair), Diane Hibbert, Sandra Holliday, 
Helena McCloskey, Charles Stewart and Paul Wheeldon 

The Council has a substitution process and any substitutions will be announced at the 
meeting 

 
Agenda  

   
1.  APOLOGIES  

    
2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

    
3.  MINUTES 

Agreement of minutes of the meeting held on 
the 02 March 2011 

(Pages 1 - 
12) 

    
4.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

If any 
 

    
5.  MATTERS REFERRED TO COMMITTEE 

A. By Council 
B. By Cabinet 

 

    
6. 6.05pm CABINET MEMBER BRIEFING 

Cabinet Member Sustainability 
Cabinet Member Built Environment 

 

    
7. 6.20pm DRAFT ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & 

SCRUTINY WORK PLAN 2011-12 
Discussion paper of the Chair of the 
Environment O&S Committee 

(Pages 13 - 
22) 

    
8. 6.40pm BUILT ENVIRONMENT SERVICES - 

COMMISSIONING PROJECT 
Discussion paper of the Cabinet Member Built 
Environment 

(Pages 23 - 
28) 

    
9. 6.55pm STREET SCENE ENFORCING REVIEW 

Discussion paper of the Head of Public 
Protection  

(Pages 29 - 
34) 



    
10. 7.15pm REGENT ARCADE AND GROSVENOR 

TERRACE PARKING 
Discussion paper of the Head of Integrated 
Transport and Sustainability 

(Pages 35 - 
38) 

    
11. 7.35pm GREEN SPACE STRATEGY 

Discussion paper of the Green Space 
Development Manager  

(Pages 39 - 
56) 

    
12. 7.55pm CABINET WASTE WORKING GROUP 

(CWWG) 
Verbal update by a representative of the CWWG 

 

    
13. 8.05pm ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN 

DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND WHICH 
REQUIRES A DECISION 

 

    
13.  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

13 July 2011 
 

    
 

Contact Officer:  Saira Malin, Democracy Officer, 01242 775153 
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011. 
 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Wednesday, 2nd March, 2011 
5.30  - 7.55 pm 

 
Attendees 

Councillors: Penny Hall (Chair), Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter, Jacky Fletcher, 
Les Godwin (In place of Diane Hibbert), Sandra Holliday, 
Helena McCloskey, Diggory Seacome (In place of Rob 
Garnham), Charles Stewart and Paul Wheeldon 

Also in attendance:  Rob Bell (Assistant Director - Operations), Mr Bracegirdle 
(Friends of Montpellier Bandstand and Gardens), Richard Gibson 
(Policy and Partnerships Manager), Councillor Colin Hay 
(Cabinet Member Corporate Services), Adrian Hensley 
(Cheltenham Festivals), Mr Keevle (Friends of Imperial Square 
and Gardens), Councillor John Rawson (Cabinet Member Built 
Environment) and Councillor Roger Whyborn (Cabinet Member 
Sustainability) 

 
Minutes 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
Councillors Hibbert and Garnham had given apologies and Councillors Godwin 
and Seacome were in attendance as their respective substitutes. 
 
Councillor Britter had advised that he would be a little late and subsequently 
arrived at 5.50pm.   
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Councillor Seacome declared a personal interest in agenda item 8 (Imperial and 
Montpellier Gardens Strategy) as an observer on the Cheltenham Festivals 
Board. 
 

3. MINUTES 
The minutes of the last meeting had been circulated with the agenda.  
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 19 January 2011 
be agreed and signed as an accurate record.  
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
No public questions were received.  
 

5. MATTERS REFERRED TO COMMITTEE 
The Chair highlighted the decision by Council for the continuation of the Budget 
Working Group with existing membership, which included committee members 
Councillors Britter and Hibbert.  The committee were happy with this proposal.  
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 1



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011 

6. CABINET MEMBER BRIEFING 
The Cabinet Member Built Environment told that following the marketing of 
North Place and Portland Street to potential developers at the end of January, 
over 100 proposals to regenerate the site against the project brief had been 
received.   This was very encouraging and following the deadline next week, all 
would be asked to complete a pre-qualification questionnaire.   From 2 finalists 
the Cabinet agreed matrix would be followed which balanced cost and 
environment.  He hoped to have a preferred developer by the end of the year, 
ready to enter into a contract as it would be a great success and step forward. 
 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) were continuing with traffic modelling on 
Boots Corner to assess the feasibility of closing it, which would require 
diversions elsewhere.  
 
GCC were looking to undertake an experiment with the traffic light system on 
St. Margarets Road.  This was very delicate and engineers were currently 
reviewing safety issues.  The Cabinet Member Built Environment did feel that 
the traffic along the road in question was very slow and congested.  He would 
keep Members informed given the importance of the issue for the town.  
 
The Council continued to encourage the owners of the Brewery site to link it 
with the lower high street, which would be a considerable improvement and 
revitalise the area.  The Council were keen to see this happen but this was a 
commercial decision and as such he would only be able to keep Members 
informed of any developments.  Were the proposals to be taken forward there 
would be a need for statutory consultation.   
 
He had recently embarked on the commissioning review of ‘Sustainable 
Communities’ which included Planning, etc.  At present an assessment of the 
needs of the town and residents was underway and he was keen to involve 
members.  He suggested that a Cabinet  Working Group including members 
from the committee as well as members of the Planning Committee and 
preferably cross party would be useful in guiding the process.  
 
The following responses were given by the Cabinet Member Built Environment 
to questions from members of the committee; 
 
• The experiment on St. Margarets Road and Boots Corner were in the 

hands of the traffic engineers at Shire Hall.  Traffic modelling had 
identified benefits in some areas and the opposite in others and they 
were now looking at how to address the issues. Modelling and 
projections had revealed problems as traffic levels increased which 
would over load a number of junctions.  He personally felt that there 
were opportunities to make better use of road capacity in Cheltenham 
and its wide one way roads but no changes would be made at the 
expense of safety.   

• Phase 2 of the Brewery development was crucial to the town but some 
issues were commercially sensitive.   

• Potential developers were issued with a development brief which set out 
various requirements for housing, open space, transport infrastructure, 
etc, but this was relatively flexible between residential and commercial.  
The ultimate aim was to achieve a development which was judged as 
highly against environment criteria as financial.   

Page 2



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011 

 
The Cabinet Member Sustainability had a small number of points to make in 
addition to some of the other items scheduled for discussion on the agenda.  
 
With regards to plastic recycling in narrow streets in the town he was able to 
confirm that this would be possible by Autumn 2011, perhaps before depending 
on delivery of the new vehicle.  
 
In relation to the Corporate Strategy and carbon emissions he noted that he 
was minded to agree a 30% reduction from 2005 to 2015. 
 
The following responses were given by the Cabinet Member Sustainability, with 
assistance from the Assistant Director – Operations, to questions from 
members of the committee; 
 
• Food caddies were being delivered on mass at the moment in 

preparation for the new food waste scheme.  Admittedly, some may 
have been delivered to some properties for which, at present, a storage 
solution had not yet been achieved.   

• Theft of brown bins was not an issue of epidemic proportions and bins 
would be replaced where necessary.  The Cabinet Working Group would 
look at this matter in greater detail.  

• Friends of the Earth had suggested a reduction to carbon emissions of 
40% by 2020 and consideration would be given to the recommendations 
of the Internal Carbon Reduction Working Group in relation to the target 
that was being proposed.  

 
The Chair introduced the Cabinet Member Corporate Services, who whilst not 
scheduled on the agenda, would be permitted to address the committee. 
 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services hoped all members had taken the 
opportunity to read his email dated the 22 February 2011, in which he had 
outlined the current position of the Council in its move to become a strategic 
commissioning authority.  
 
A members working group had been established some time ago and was 
originally tasked with assessing the rationale behind the move to strategic 
commissioning.   
 
In December 2010 Council agreed the move to strategic commissioning and 
associated changes to the Council structures.  
 
The working group were now focussing on member roles and he was attending 
the meeting in this instance to seek the views and comments of the committee 
on who should be involved, when and how.  He had attended Social and 
Community O&S earlier in the week and would be attending Economy and 
Business Improvement O&S on Monday 7 March.  
 
He was confident that this was an opportunity to enhance the role of all 
members.  Commissioning required knowledge of needs of the community and 
members had a role in feeding back from their wards, constituents and the town 
in general.   
 

Page 3



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 4 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011 

The relevant Cabinet Member(s) would sit on the Programme Board for each 
commissioning exercise and maintain a dialogue with all Councillors to ensure 
that they were all fully engaged.  He was also keen to see Cabinet Working 
Groups established to support these reviews. 
 
Whilst Cabinet Members were accountable, Overview & Scrutiny (O&S) had a 
role in monitoring services and ensuring the outcomes were being delivered.   
 
Establishing member roles and a way of approaching commissioning exercises 
with which all members were comfortable was crucial.  No decisions had yet 
been made, it was an evolving process and as such he urged members to 
respond to his email.   
 
The working group had discussed the current three committee O&S structure 
and whether this was the right way forward and whether there was an 
opportunity to change the structure, though it was not for Cabinet to decide how 
scrutiny was organised.  The County had a different model for O&S, elements of 
which could be used.   
 
Working groups were focussed, interesting and could prove more effective, 
enabling more open dialogue on options.  The Budget Working Group could 
prove a useful example.  
 
He assured members that this was merely an introduction to strategic 
commissioning and more detail would be provided next time.  The next few 
months would be important in establishing a successful process of member 
involvement.   
 
The Chair asked that all members respond to the Cabinet Member Corporate 
Services’ email.  This was an initial opportunity for members to offer their 
opinion and help shape the process for member involvement.  
 

7. DRAFT CORPORATE STRATEGY 2011-12 
The Policy and Partnerships Manager introduced the report as circulated with 
the agenda.  
 
The objective and outcomes framework had been retained, though as the 
council’s budget had reduced by nearly £3m from last year and the scale of 
activity had reduced with 14 less improvement actions. 
 
Members would not be surprised by the improvement actions as 11 had been 
retained from the previous year.  Item 3.1 of the report set out the outcomes 
that were directly applicable to the work of the committee.  
 
Government had lifted the national indicator set which had been welcomed as it 
presented an opportunity to reflect on indicators used to measure corporate 
performance and choose new indicators which could be more meaningful.   
 
To ensure that the formal views of the members were captured the draft 
strategy would be considered by all three overview and scrutiny committees.  It 
had been considered by Social and Community O&S and would go to Economy 
& Business Improvement on Monday (7 March), before going to Cabinet on the 
15 March and then to Council on the 28 March for final approval.   

Page 4



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 5 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011 

 
Feedback from the O&S committees would be included in the final report or in a 
verbal update from the Leader.  
 
Councillor Wheeldon was keen for ‘sustainable’ to be included in the outcome 
relating to access to decent and affordable housing, given that a house may be 
affordable to buy but not necessarily to run.   
 
The following responses were given by the Policy and Partnerships Manager to 
questions from members of the committee; 
 
• The 2005 CO2 emissions baseline could be used if this was what other 

organisations used, thus making it easier to compare performance.  This 
would be raised with the Climate Change and Sustainability Officer. 

•  The indicators for ‘Cheltenham’s natural and built environment is 
enhanced and protected’ had previously been satisfaction indicators 
from the Place Survey.  As this was no longer being undertaken and 
given that the Council was not in a position to collect the information 
itself, this would need to be further reviewed as admittedly the indicator 
was entirely administrative.  

• Apprentices were an indicator within the ‘Cheltenham is able to recover 
quickly and strongly from the recession’.   

• The question marks had been completed since the draft strategy was 
circulated.  A completed version would be circulated for Council.   

• The indicators relating to cleanliness had been amended and would now 
focus on waste collection. 

• The targets for households living in temporary accommodation and 
number of homelessness acceptances had been set in anticipation of 
increases following the changes to housing benefits.  

 
The Chair thanked the Policy and Partnerships Manager for his attendance and 
commended him for a well analysed response to the workforce challenges 
within the introduction of the strategy.  
 
He thanked the Chair for her kind words and clarified that this extract of the 
introduction had been drafted by the Assistant Director – Human Resources 
and Organisational Development.  
 

8. IMPERIAL AND MONTPELLIER GARDENS STRATEGY 
The Cabinet Member Sustainability introduced the paper as circulated with the 
agenda. 
 
The strategy was born of two elements, the first, Cheltenham Festivals (CF) 
requests for a review of the design and usage of the Gardens to allow 
expansion due to increased demand and the second, concerns of residents 
about the increased use of Imperial Gardens and resulting standards of the 
gardens. 
 
This culminated in a public petition which was debated at Council in December 
and resulted in a request that Cabinet attempt to resolve the issues, which in 
turn should be reviewed by the relevant O&S Committees (Environment and 
Economy & Business Improvement).   

Page 5



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 6 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011 

 
There were no easy answers, simply saying yes to one and no to the other was 
not an option given how important both CF and the gardens were to the town.   
 
In consideration of all the issues, as set out in item 3 of the paper, two options 
were developed. 
 
Option 1 favoured the primary use of the gardens as a public garden and 
denying CF increased usage of Imperial Gardens.  Restricting CF to the lower 
tier of Imperial Gardens and reducing tentage would resolve resident concerns 
but would not address CF’s issues.   
 
Option 2 provided an opportunity to redesign Imperial Gardens to accommodate 
CF, achieving a ‘festival within a garden’ feel and allowing use of Montpellier 
Gardens.  Whilst offering a lower capacity in Imperial Gardens, it would allow 
expansion into Montpellier Gadens and the positioning of flowerbeds between 
tents would ensure the retained look and feel of the garden whether the tents 
were up or down.  This would be beneficial to festival goers too.   
 
The Cabinet Member Sustainability echoed the comments at Council about the 
desire to reopen Skillicorne Gardens.   
 
The Chair explained that she would now allow speakers on behalf of CF, 
Friends of Imperial Square and Gardens (FoISaG) and Friends of Montpellier 
Bandstand and Gardens (FoMBaG).    
 
Adrian Hensley of CF introduced himself to the committee.  He welcomed the 
paper which he felt, moving forward, opened constructive discussion.  
 
The proposed limit to use of the gardens to 75 days had necessitated in depth 
discussions with the relevant contractors in an effort to identify opportunities to 
reduce the time spent building and removing the tents.  Access was key as this 
had a direct impact on the period CF were in the gardens.   
 
A larger site would result in a shorter festival, whilst a smaller site would require 
a longer festival period in order that it were financially viable.  
 
Future decisions about size and duration of various festivals would be greatly 
affected by the design of the gardens.  If permitted expansion, CF would need 
to be involved in discussions regarding design in order that CF were not 
hindered by the design, given that walkways between tents were specific 
widths, etc.  
 
From CF’s point of view improvements to the infrastructure were required, 
improved external water and power supplies would make for more efficient 
festivals and negate the need to transport and house large generators, etc.  
 
Another approach for CF to meet reduced timeframes would be to utilise 
Montpellier Gardens, though there was no desire on CF’s part to move the 
problem.   
 
There were many challenges to overcome but CF welcomed the open dialogue 
between all interested parties.  

Page 6



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 7 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011 

 
Adrian Hensley of CF offered the following responses to questions from 
members of the committee; 
 
• There were 2 approaches to reducing time in Imperial Gardens to 75 

days.  The first was moving the Jazz Festival to Montpellier Gardens, 
which had the added benefit of relieving Imperial Gardens before the 
Science Festival started a short time after.  The second would be 
improving access to Imperial Gardens which was currently accessed via 
the Town Hall.  He was confident that either of these approaches would 
make it possible to achieve the 75 days limit.  

•  It was difficult to say what the optimum amount of space would be in the 
future as CF couldn’t predict requirements of future years.  Knowing the 
maximum amount of space and design of gardens would allow CF to 
build to suit the space that was available to them. 

• As the Production Manager for CF, he wasn’t an authority on the issue 
but venues were often organised after artists had stipulated their 
availability (date/time) and as such there were occasions when the 
venue was a little large for the size of the audience.  

• Over the last 12 years CF had endeavoured to use local contractors 
wherever possible.  However, given the increased scale of tents and 
reduced time, the current tent contractor had admitted that they wouldn’t 
be able to undertake work to both Imperial and Montpellier Gardens.  
The tender process had allowed for open discussions with contractors 
about the time constraints, etc.  CF were eager to support local 
companies, many of whom had grown with the Festivals and would 
strive to continue to do so where possible. 

 
Mr Hensley thanked the committee for extending an invite to CF to attend the 
meeting.  
 
Mr Keevle, the Vice Chair of FoISaG introduced himself to the committee.  
 
He didn’t intend to go through the pros and cons of the 2 options given that they 
were well set out in the paper that had been produced, but he did note how 
constructive he had found the whole process and how appreciative  FoISaG 
were for the opportunity to be involved.  
 
He considered Imperial Gardens and others like it to be the jewel in the crown 
of Cheltenham and Option 1 would be his preferred option, retaining and/or 
increasing the flower beds and reducing the space for CF.   
 
He did realise that this would not be entirely acceptable to everyone and had 
therefore considered Option 2.  He felt this option had merit too and especially 
liked the reference to ‘festival within a garden’.   
 
However, he felt strongly that Option 2 would need strict conditions, rewards 
and fines associated with it which would need to be policed, though admittedly 
there was reference to this within the paper.  
 
A sensible approach would be for at least one of the festivals, perhaps Jazz as 
the smallest, to go elsewhere, with Montpellier Gardens the obvious choice.  
The feeling was that the Literature Festival in October caused the most damage 

Page 7



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 8 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011 

to Imperial Gardens and allowing it time to recover should be a consideration for 
the future.  Perhaps boarding over the beds could be another option. 
 
Whilst he understood the need to include some sustainable planting, he urged 
that the flower beds retain at least some of the coloured flowers and saw 
distinct benefits to opening Skillicorne Gardens.    
 
He was comfortable with the idea of some hard standings in Imperial gardens 
which would minimise damage to the grass and beds, though personally, he 
struggled to accept that it was not possible to use restorative treatments on the 
lawns, which he felt was wholly necessary if the use of the gardens was to 
increase.  
 
In closing he explained that FoISaG were looking to establish a charity in order 
to secure funding to replace the railings at Imperial Gardens in acceptance that 
the Council were not in a position to provide funding, though they would be fully 
consulted.  
 
The Chair thanked Mr Keevle for his very practical approach.  
 
As a point of clarification Adrian Hensley of CF explained that the hope was to 
move the Jazz Festival to Montpellier Gardens in 2012 rather than 2011. 
 
Members agreed with Option 2 as a way forward and were impressed that both 
parties accepted the need to reduce the period in which tents were in Imperial 
Gardens.  The suggestion by Mr Keevle to board over flower beds was an 
imaginative one and welcomed by members.  
 
The Chair reminded members and attendees that the committee were a 
sounding board rather than the decision maker but welcomed general 
consensus having been achieved.  
 
Brian Bracegirdle the Secretary of FoMBaG for over 20 years, introduced 
himself to the committee.  He apologised for the comments that he would make 
which members may construe as negativity but in his mind had to be said. 
 
In order to meet the demands of CF the Council planned to ‘lump together’ 
Imperial and Montpellier Gardens which was in the opinion of FoMBaG was 
unfeasible given their differing sizes, users and number of residents in 
proximity.  
 
In 2004 the Council received a substantial sum of Heritage Lottery Funding to 
renovate Montpellier Gardens and Clause 8 of the funding agreement stated 
“The Grantee will arrange for the general public to have appropriate access to 
the Property.  The Grantee will ensure that no person is unreasonably denied 
access to the Property”. His interpretation of which was that Montpellier 
Gardens were restored for general use and not as a show ground.  He had 
presumed that Officers currently employed by the Council were unaware of 
such a clause and had therefore highlighted it to them last week.  His concern 
was that the Council would grant CF use of Montpellier Gardens in contradiction 
of the clause.  
 

Page 8



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 9 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011 

The Managing Director of CF claimed to have evidence that the Festivals 
generated huge financial benefits for the Town and yet despite more than one 
request, she had failed to submit any proof to substantiate her claims.   
 
Imperial Gardens were in very poor condition following last years Festivals.   
 
To conclude he stated that by allowing use of Montpellier Gardens by CF for 75 
days of ‘shows’ would fall foul of Clause 8 of the HLF agreement of 2004 and it 
was his duty to highlight this.  Having undertaken surveys of users of the 
Montpellier Gardens where he had put the proposals to them had evoked 
concern and discontent.   
 
He and his wife were in fact patrons of the Festivals and he had been 
compelled to raise the issue in spite of it appearing negative. 
 
In response to concerns of members about the weight that the clause carried, 
the Assistant Director – Operations advised that given that Members and 
Officers with first-hand knowledge of the agreement had since moved on, the 
matter would need to be investigated further and prior to Cabinet.  He couldn’t 
imagine that the clause would preclude doing things in the gardens, the Food 
Festival for example.  
 
Members felt that the Festivals were the jewel in the crown of tourism for 
Cheltenham and did not doubt the financial benefits that came with it.   
 
The Cabinet Member Sustainability highlighted that the issue of the clause had 
been raised too late for inclusion in the paper which had been circulated. The 
paperwork associated with the HLF funding was currently being reviewed by 
Officers and therefore no definitive answer could be provided at this time.  His 
initial understanding was that the agreement did not preclude events such as 
the Food Festival as the gardens remained open to the public, except when it 
was necessary for safety reasons to close them (erecting and dismantling 
tents).  He hoped to have achieved clarity on the issue before Monday (7 
March), when the item was scheduled for discussion at Economy & Business 
Improvement and would include members of this committee in any emails. 
 
Councillor Barbara Driver, as the relevant Ward Member asked that she be 
included in any emails relating to the issue. 
 
In response to a question from a member of the committee the Cabinet Member 
confirmed that continuation of the current arrangements was referred to within 
the paper.  However, there had been no merit to offering it as a third option 
given that it clearly wasn’t working as well as it should.   
 
Councillor Seacome felt obliged as the Chairman of the Licensing Committee to 
reaffirm the decision of the committee almost 5 years ago to grant a year-round 
license to both Imperial and Montpellier Gardens in order that individual events 
didn’t need to apply each time.  He wondered whether this may pose an issue in 
light of the clause.  
 
The Chair moved to bring discussion to a close given the time permitted on the 
agenda. Whilst not tasked with making a decision, members had indicated their 
preference towards Option 2 and she looked forward to hearing the issue 

Page 9



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 10 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011 

discussed at Cabinet - the matter was hugely important and at the point of 
agreeing a way forward to the future.   

 
She thanked everyone, including members of the public, for their attendance for 
what she felt was a very thought provoking discussion.   
 

9. JOINT WASTE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
This item was taken after the Internal Carbon Reduction Working Group update.   
 
The Assistant Director – Operations, introduced the paper as circulated with the 
agenda, which in effect was a position statement based on the circumstances at 
the time that it was drafted.  The issue required a very fluid approach given the 
complexities of having 4 partners.  
 
The paper offered a direction of travel and things were moving forward but at 
present there was not enough clarity for an informed debate.  Reports were 
scheduled to go to Cabinet in July and September which this committee were 
invited to consider.  
 
In response to a question from a member of the committee the Assistant 
Director – Operations confirmed that the costs of accommodation were subject 
to separate agreements and a plan was in place to establish a fair market value 
in the future.    
 
The Chair thanked the Assistant Director for his attendance and what she felt 
was a very well written paper which she had enjoyed reading.  The risk 
assessment gave cause for concern but on a positive note she was relieved to 
see that they had been identified.  
 

10. INTERNAL CARBON REDUCTION WORKING GROUP (ICRWG) 
This item was taken before the Joint Waste Governance Arrangement item as 
Councillor Wheeldon, a member of the Internal Waste Working Group had to 
leave.  
 
The Chair introduced the item and explained that the verbal update came in 
anticipation of the formal report back to the committee from the working group. 
 
Councillors Wheeldon, Bickerton and McCloskey introduced themselves as 
members of the Internal Carbon Reduction Working Group (ICRWG).  
 
Councillor Wheeldon confirmed that the first activity of the ICRWG was to 
establish the baseline CO2 emissions against which progress would be 
measured and the group chose the 2005 figure that many other organisations 
used.  This covered emissions from energy use in buildings, the vehicle fleet 
and business travel and excluded figures from Cheltenham Borough Homes.   
 
The Council had undertaken various energy saving initiatives over the last few 
years, switching to low energy lighting, installing time switches, etc and each of 
these relatively small things had equated to a reduction of almost 500 tonnes of 
carbon emissions since 2005, which was a substantial cut.  
 
The comment by the Cabinet Member Sustainability earlier in the meeting about 
setting a target reduction of 30% by 2015 had come as a pleasant surprise.  

Page 10



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 11 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011 

Friends of the Earth had made a presentation to the working group on their ‘Get 
Serious’ campaign and challenged the Council to set a target reduction of 40% 
across the Borough by 2020.  The working group felt that they were unable to 
commit to a borough-wide reduction but did feel that such a reduction by the 
Council was feasible.  
 
Invest to save had been another area of work for the group and the need to 
consider initiatives with a longer term payback period would form one of the 
recommendations of the working group back to the committee.  Whilst aware of 
the budget constraints, saving energy equated to saving money.   
 
In October 2011 the Councils electricity contract was due for renewal.  Were the 
Council to switch to a wholly green source it could reduce its carbon emissions 
by up to 25%, but the increased cost would need to be offset against this.   
 
Councillor Bickerton explained that the current initiatives were similar to those 
being undertaken by people in their homes, investing in LED light, etc.  
However, making the change to a greener electricity supplier would provide a 
much larger scale impact.   
 
Other options could include using solar panels to create electricity which would 
require a big investment and a payback period of around 10 years.  Perhaps in 
the future the Council could consider replacing its fleet with electric vehicles 
when prices were more reasonable.   
 
Councillor Wheeldon interjected, there was an urgency to the solar panel 
decision because the financial viability of any project depended on the national 
feed-in tariff scheme.  Prices were fixed for applicants entering the scheme 
before April 2012 and applied for 25 years thereafter, but the Government and 
could change the tariff levels and rules for applications after that date.  This 
could mean that any project planned after April 2012 would no longer be 
financially viable.  
 
In addition to the update provided by her colleagues on the working group, 
Councillor McCloskey detailed the move to replace laptops and PCs with data 
terminals which produced less heat and were more efficient as well as replacing 
air conditioning with evaporative cooling systems. 
 
The Cabinet Member Sustainability explained the process with which 
evaporative cooling systems used water to cool the air.   
 
The Chair thanked the members for their involvement to date, wished the group 
luck with future endeavours and looked forward to the reviewing their final 
recommendations.   
 
Councillor Wheeldon left at 7.45pm.  
 

11. ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY WORK PLAN 2010-2011 
The Chair referred members to the work plan and explained that two items 
formerly schedule for discussion at this meeting had been deferred.  Members 
had received a briefing note for Street Scene Enforcing which explained the 
reason for the delay.  The Supplementary Planning Document 2011-12 Work 

Page 11



. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 12 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Wednesday, 11 May 2011 

Plan had been deferred as the relevant Officer was ill.  Both items would be 
scheduled for discussion at a later date.  
 
Members were reminded that this was the last meeting of the 2010-11 year.  
Prior to the next meeting, the first of 2011-12, a draft work plan would be 
developed.  This would be presented to the next meeting of the committee as 
the first item on the agenda for discussion and approval.  
 
The Chair felt the committee had, had a good year of robust overview and 
scrutiny and thanked all Members and Officers for their involvement, specifically 
those working groups which had achieved some excellent results.  
 
She thanked Pat Pratley the Lead Officer and Saira Malin the Democracy 
Officer for their hard work and support over the last year and Councillor Britter 
in his role as Vice-Chair of the committee.  
 
All members repaid thanks to the Chair.  
 

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN DETERMINES TO BE URGENT 
AND WHICH REQUIRES A DECISION 
There were no urgent items for discussion. 
 

13. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting was scheduled for the 11 May 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 

Penny Hall 
Chairman 

 

Page 12



 

 

   
 Page 1 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  
 

Information Paper 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

11 May 2011 
Work Planning 2011-2012 

Background 
1.1 In June 2010 the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee agreed their 2010-

2011 work plan.  At the meeting held on the 02 March 2011 Members supported the 
proposal by the Chair to repeat the process for the 2011-2012 work plan and that this 
item be placed at the forefront of the agenda.  

Progress to date 
1.2 The Chair and Vice-Chair of Environment Overview & Scrutiny have discussed 

informally with the Directors Built Environment and Operations how scrutiny can best 
add value in assisting the delivery of the outcomes outlined in the Corporate Strategy 
2010-2015 under the community objective of Enhancing and Protecting our 
Environment namely that : 

• Cheltenham has a clean and well-maintained environment 
• Cheltenham’s natural and built environment is enhanced and protected 
• Carbon emissions are reduced and Cheltenham is able to adapt to the 

impacts of climate change 
1.3 Whilst not an exclusive list, Appendix 1 lists details of six proposed topics identified 

by the Chair and Vice-Chair further to this discussion for Members to consider.  
1.4 Lead Officers identified in Appendix 1 will be present at the meeting to answer any 

questions Members may have with regard to the specific work streams suggested or 
to respond to topics not covered but raised by Members. 

1.5 The work plan for the Committee is attached at Appendix 2.  Members are asked to 
review the items scheduled and are invited to propose future items. 

1.6 Committee working groups already established, as well as Cabinet Member working 
groups within the remit of the Committee are listed in Appendix 3, for information. 

Next Steps 
1.7 Members are therefore asked to :  

• examine the proposed scrutiny topics and agree on which ones to take forward 
and where necessary appoint members to a working group where one does not 

Agenda Item 7
Page 13



 

 

   
 Page 2 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  
 

already exist 
• suggest further topics for investigation 
• approve the draft Environment Overview and Scrutiny work plan 2011-2012 

 
Appendices 1. Proposed scrutiny topics 2011-2012 

2. Draft work plan 2011-2012 
3. List of existing Committee and Cabinet 

Member working groups 
Background Papers 2010-2015 Corporate Strategy 
Contact Officer Pat Pratley, Lead Officer/Saira Malin, 

Democracy Officer 
 
 

Page 14



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 
 

PR
OP

OS
ED

 SC
RU

TIN
Y T

OP
IC

S F
OR

 EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
 O

&S
 20

11
-12

  
 

Co
rp

or
ate

 St
rat

eg
y O

bje
cti

ve
 

Ite
m 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
Pu

rp
os

e 
Ou

tco
me

 
Wh

at 
is 

req
uir

ed
? 

Wh
at 

wi
ll b

e 
pr

es
en

ted
 an

d 
wh

en
? 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er 

 - 1
 - 

Ob
jec

tiv
e: 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m’
s n

atu
ral

 an
d b

uil
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t is
 en

ha
nc

ed
 an

d p
ro

tec
ted

 
Bu
ilt 
En
vir
on
me

nt 
Co
mm

iss
ion
ing

 Pr
oje

ct 
– c
on
sid
er 
a r
an
ge
 of
 

co
mm

un
ity
, s
tak

eh
old

er 
an
d c
us
tom

er 
ne
ed
s 

an
d i
de
nti
fy 
wh
at 

ou
tco

me
s a
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 in
 or
de
r to

 
de
liv
er 
the

m 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Ga
in 
su
pp
ort
 fro

m 
O&

S t
ha
t th

e d
ire
cti
on
 

of 
tra
ve
l b
ein
g 

pro
po
se
d i
n 

ac
ce
pta

ble
 

En
vir
on
me

nt 
O&

S i
s 

req
ue
ste

d t
o r
ev
iew

 th
e 

wo
rk 
of 
the

 C
ab
ine

t 
Me

mb
er 
W
ork

ing
 G
rou

p 
wh
ich
 in
 tu
rn 
wil
l 

rec
om

me
nd
 to
 C
ab
ine

t 
wh
at 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 ex
ist
 fo
r 

the
 ra
ng
e o

f fu
nc
tio
ns
 in
 

sc
op
e 

DR
AF
T r
ep
ort
 (1
3 

Ju
ly 
20
11
) p
rio
r to

 
Ca
bin

et 
 

Gr
ah
am

e 
Le
wis

 

Ne
w 
Ho
me

s B
on
us
 

 

To
 en

su
re 
tha

t th
e 

co
rpo

rat
e a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 

mi
nim

isin
g t
he
 nu

mb
er 

of 
lon
g t
erm

 va
ca
nt 

pro
pe
rtie

s i
n t
he
 to
wn
 

is 
joi
ne
d-u

p a
nd
 

ma
kin
g a

n o
pti
mu

m 
co
ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o 

se
cu
rin
g N

ew
 H
om

es
 

Bo
nu
s p
ay
me

nts
.  

En
vir
on
me

nt 
O&

S i
s 

req
ue
ste

d t
o c
om

me
nt 

on
 w
he
the

r th
e t
arg

ets
, 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 an

d 
ap
pro

ac
h b

ein
g 

pro
po
se
d i
s a
cc
ep
tab

le 

Dis
cu
ss
ion

 pa
pe
r 

up
da
tin
g o

n 
cu
rre
nt 
po
sit
ion
 

an
d s
tra
teg

y 
reg

ard
ing

 lo
ng
 

ter
m 
va
ca
nt 

dw
ell
ing

s a
nd
 

rel
ate

d i
nit
iat
ive
s 

– t
o 1

4.9
.11

 
me

eti
ng
 

Mi
ke
 

Re
dm

an
 

Im
pe
ria
l a
nd
 

Mo
ntp

ell
ier
 G
ard

en
s 

Sc
rut
iny
 

Un
de
rst
an
d t
he
 vi
ew
s 

of 
O&

S o
n t
he
 

pro
po
se
d l
ay
ou
t o
f th

e 
ga
rde

ns
 po

st 
pu
bli
c 

En
vir
on
me

nt 
O&

S i
s 

req
ue
ste

d t
o c
om

me
nt 

on
 th
e p

rop
os
ed
 la
yo
ut 

for
 th
e g

ard
en
s p
os
t 

DR
AF
T r
ep
ort
 (1
4 

Se
pte

mb
er 
20
11
) 

pri
or 
to 
Ca
bin
et 

Ro
b B

ell
 

Page 15



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 
 

PR
OP

OS
ED

 SC
RU

TIN
Y T

OP
IC

S F
OR

 EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
 O

&S
 20

11
-12

  
 

Co
rp

or
ate

 St
rat

eg
y O

bje
cti

ve
 

Ite
m 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
Pu

rp
os

e 
Ou

tco
me

 
Wh

at 
is 

req
uir

ed
? 

Wh
at 

wi
ll b

e 
pr

es
en

ted
 an

d 
wh

en
? 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er 

 - 2
 - 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

pu
bli
c c
on
su
lta
tio
n a

nd
 

pri
or 
to 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s t
o 

Ca
bin

et 
Ob

jec
tiv

e: 
Ca

rb
on

 em
iss

ion
s a

re 
red

uc
ed

 an
d C

he
lte

nh
am

 is
 ab

le 
to 

ad
ap

t to
 th

em
 im

pa
cts

 of
 cl

im
ate

 ch
an

ge
 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
Ca
r 

Pa
rki
ng
 St
rat
eg
y a
nd
 

rel
ate

d e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
(G
los
. C
ou
nty
 an

d 
CB

C)
 

Ov
erv

iew
 Ga

in 
su
pp
ort
 fro

m 
O&

S f
or 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s
 

pro
po
se
d p

ark
ing

 
str
ate

gy
 pr
ior
 to
 

rep
ort
ing

 to
 C
ab
ine

t 

To
 re
vie
w 
an
d a

gre
e t
he
 

dra
ft p

ark
ing
 st
rat
eg
y 

de
ve
lop

ed
 in
 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 th
e 

En
v O

&S
 Pa

rki
ng
 

W
ork

ing
 G
rou

p 

Dr
aft
 st
rat
eg
y 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 

for
 ad

op
tio
n b

y 
Ca
bin

et 
-  t
o 

13
.7.
11
 m
ee
tin
g 

Ow
en
 Pa

rry
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e: 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
ha

s a
 cl

ea
n a

nd
 w

ell
-m

ain
tai

ne
d e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 

Jo
int
 W
as
te 
Se
rvi
ce
s 

Co
mm

iss
ion
ing

 Pr
oje

ct 
Sc
rut
iny
 

Ga
in 
su
pp
ort
 fro

m 
O&

S f
or 
the

 pr
op
os
ed
 

go
ve
rna

nc
e o

pti
on
s f
or 

the
 W
as
te 
Se
rvi
ce
s 

Co
mm

iss
ion
ing

 
Pr
oje

ct 

En
vir
on
me

nt 
O&

S i
s 

req
ue
ste

d t
o c
om

me
nt 

up
on
 th
e p

rop
os
als
 to
 

es
tab

lish
 a 
LA
 C
om

pa
ny
 

wit
h C

ots
wo
ld 
Dis

tric
t 

Co
un
cil 
in 
ord

er 
to 

de
liv
er 
the

ir f
ull
 ra
ng
e o

f 
wa
ste
 an

d r
ec
yc
lin
g 

se
rvi
ce
s. 

DR
AF
T r
ep
ort
 

(14
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
11
) p
rio
r to

 
Ca
bin

et 
Ro
b B

ell
 

  

Page 16



En
vir

on
me

nt 
O&

S C
om

mi
tte

e 2
01

1-2
01

2 w
ork

 pl
an

  
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
2 

 
 

Ite
m  

Pu
rp
os

e 
Ou

tco
me

 
Wh

at 
is 

req
uir

ed
? 

Le
ad

 O
ffic

er 
 \\m

ud
ata

\m
gd

ata
roo

t\A
ge

nd
aIt

em
Do

cs
\3\

2\0
\AI

00
00

20
23

\$y
isx

rrv
a.d

oc
 

 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 1
1 M

ay
 20

11
 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

12
 A
pr
il 2

01
1 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 Pa

pe
rs:

 27
 A
pr
il 2

01
1 (

giv
en

 ba
nk

 ho
lid

ay
s) 

DR
AF

T C
om

mi
tte

e 2
01

1-1
2 

wo
rk 

pla
n 

Sc
rut

iny
 

Re
vie

w 
an

d c
om

me
nt 

on
 

the
 D
RA

FT
 w
ork

 pl
an

 fo
r 

20
11

-12
 

Dis
cu

ss
ion

 
pa

pe
r 

Co
un

cill
or 

Ha
ll, 
Ch

air
 of

 th
e 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
O&

S C
om

mi
tte

e 

Ca
bin

et 
W
as

te 
W
ork

ing
 G

rou
p 

(C
WW

G)
 

Sta
nd

ard
 

Ite
m 

Co
ns

ide
r is

su
es

 be
ing

 
de

alt
 w
ith

 du
rin

g t
he

 pr
e 

an
d p

os
t im

ple
me

nta
tio

n 
of 

the
 ne

w 
wa

ste
 st

rat
eg

y 
Ve

rba
l u

pd
ate

  
CW

WG
 re

pre
se

nta
tiv

e 

Bu
ilt 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 Pr
oje

ct 
Sc

rut
iny

 
Re

vie
w 
the

 di
rec

tio
n o

f 
tra

ve
l b

ein
g p

rop
os

ed
 

Dis
cu

ss
ion

 
pa

pe
r 

Gr
ah

am
e L

ew
is,
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
  D

ire
cto

r 

Str
ee

t S
ce

ne
 En

for
cin

g R
ev

iew
  

Sc
rut

iny
 

Re
vie

w 
eff

ec
tiv
en

es
s o

f 
the

 ne
w 
wo

rki
ng

 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 
Dis

cu
ss
ion

 
pa

pe
r 

Ba
rba

ra 
Ex

ley
, H

ea
d o

f P
ub

lic 
Pr

ote
cti

on
 

Gr
ee

n S
pa

ce
 St

rat
eg

y 
Sc

rut
iny

 
Re

vie
w 
of 

the
 G

ree
n 

Sp
ac

e S
tra

teg
y a

cti
on

 
pla

n a
nd

 ar
ea

s f
or 

fur
the

r 
en

ga
ge

me
nt 

of 
the

 
wo

rki
ng

 gr
ou

p 

Dis
cu

ss
ion

 
pa

pe
r 

Ad
am

 R
ey

no
lds

, G
ree

n S
pa

ce
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Ma

na
ge

r  

Re
ge

nt 
Ar

ca
de

 an
d G

ros
ve

no
r 

Te
rra

ce
 pa

rki
ng

 
Sc

rut
iny

 
Co

ns
ide

r th
e b

us
ine

ss
 

ca
se

 fo
r n

ew
 pa

rki
ng

 
so

lut
ion

s a
t b

oth
 si
tes

 
Dis

cu
ss
ion

 
pa

pe
r 

Mi
ke

 R
ed

ma
n o

r O
we

n P
arr

y -
 tb

c 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 1
3 J

uly
 20

11
 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

8 J
un

e 2
01
1 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 Pa

pe
rs:

 1 
Ju

ly 
20
11
 

Ca
bin

et 
W
as

te 
W
ork

ing
 G

rou
p 

(C
WW

G)
 

Sta
nd

ard
 

ite
m 

Co
ns

ide
r is

su
es

 be
ing

 
de

alt
 w
ith

 du
rin

g t
he

 pr
e 

an
d p

os
t im

ple
me

nta
tio

n 
of 

the
 ne

w 
wa

ste
 st

rat
eg

y  
Ve

rba
l u

pd
ate

  
CW

WG
 re

pre
se

nta
tiv

e 

Se
co

nd
 an

nu
al 

rev
iew

 of
 th

e 
Gl

ou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 Ai

rpo
rt –

 G
ree

n 
Sc

rut
iny

 
Re

vie
w 
of 

the
 G

ree
n 

Po
licy

 
Re

po
rt 

Gi
ll M

orr
is,
 C

lim
ate

 C
ha

ng
e a

nd
 

Su
sta

ina
bil
ity 

Of
fic

er 

Page 17



En
vir

on
me

nt 
O&

S C
om

mi
tte

e 2
01

1-2
01

2 w
ork

 pl
an

  
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
2 

 
 

Ite
m  

Pu
rp
os

e 
Ou

tco
me

 
Wh

at 
is 

req
uir

ed
? 

Le
ad

 O
ffic

er 
 \\m

ud
ata

\m
gd

ata
roo

t\A
ge

nd
aIt

em
Do

cs
\3\

2\0
\AI

00
00

20
23

\$y
isx

rrv
a.d

oc
 

Po
licy

 20
11

-20
12

 

Bu
ilt 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 Pr
oje

ct 
 

Sc
rut

iny
 

Co
mm

en
t o

n d
raf

t re
po

rt 
pri

or 
to 

Ca
bin

et 
(26

 Ju
ly)

 
Re

po
rt 

Gr
ah

am
e L

ew
is,

 Ex
ec

uti
ve

 D
ire

cto
r 

Str
ee

t C
lea

ns
ing

 Sa
tis
fac

tio
n 

Sc
rut

iny
 

To
 un

de
rst

an
d t

he
 

cu
rre

nt 
tre

nd
 in

 cu
sto

me
r 

sa
tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 th

e 
se

rvi
ce

 an
d a

cti
on

 be
ing

 
tak

en
, if

 ne
ce

ss
ary

, to
 

ad
dre

ss
 m

ajo
r c

on
ce

rns
 

wit
h p

erf
orm

an
ce

 

Re
po

rt  
Ro

b B
ell
 or

 Be
th 

Bo
ug

hto
n 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Ca

r P
ark

ing
 

Str
ate

gy
 an

d r
ela

ted
 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
(G

los
. C

ou
nty

 an
d 

CB
C)

 
Up

da
te 

Co
ns

ide
r a

nd
 ag

ree
 dr

aft
 

str
ate

gy
 pr

ior
 to

 C
ab

ine
t 

(26
 Ju

ly)
 

Re
po

rt 
Ow

en
 Pa

rry
, In

teg
rat

ed
 Tr

an
sp

ort
 

Ma
na

ge
r o

r M
ike

 R
ed

ma
n A

D 
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 1
4 S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
1 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

10
 A
ug

us
t 2

01
1 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 2 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
11
 

Jo
int

 W
as

te 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 Pr
oje

ct 
Sc

rut
iny

 

Co
ns

ide
r a

nd
 co

mm
en

t 
up

on
 pr

op
os

als
 to

 
es

tab
lish

 a 
LA

 C
om

pa
ny

 
wit

h C
ots

wo
ld 

Co
un

cil 
in 

ord
er 

to 
de

live
r th

eir
 fu

ll 
ran

ge
 of

 w
as

te 
an

d 
rec

ycl
ing

 pr
ior

 to
 C

ab
ine

t 
(20

 Se
pt)

 

Re
po

rt 
Ro

b B
ell
, D

ire
cto

r O
pe

rat
ion

s 

Im
pe

ria
l a

nd
 M

on
tpe

llie
r 

Ga
rde

ns
 

Sc
rut

iny
 

Co
ns

ide
r th

e p
rop

os
ed

 
lay

ou
t fo

r th
e g

ard
en

s 
po

st 
pu

bli
c c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d p
rio

r to
 C

ab
ine

t (2
0 

Se
pt)

 

DR
AF

T C
ab

ine
t 

rep
ort

 
Ro

b B
ell
, D

ire
cto

r O
pe

rat
ion

s 

Page 18



En
vir

on
me

nt 
O&

S C
om

mi
tte

e 2
01

1-2
01

2 w
ork

 pl
an

  
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
2 

 
 

Ite
m  

Pu
rp
os

e 
Ou

tco
me

 
Wh

at 
is 

req
uir

ed
? 

Le
ad

 O
ffic

er 
 \\m

ud
ata

\m
gd

ata
roo

t\A
ge

nd
aIt

em
Do

cs
\3\

2\0
\AI

00
00

20
23

\$y
isx

rrv
a.d

oc
 

Ne
w 
Ho

me
s B

on
us

 
Sc

rut
iny

 

Co
ns

ide
r th

e p
rop

os
ed

 
tar

ge
ts,

 m
on

ito
rin

g a
nd

 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o m

ini
mi

sin
g 

the
 nu

mb
er 

of 
lon

g t
erm

 
pro

pe
rtie

s i
n t

he
 to

wn
 – 

ma
kin

g a
n o

pti
mu

m 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t

o s
ec

uri
ng

 
Ne

w 
Ho

me
s B

on
us

 
pa

ym
en

ts 

Dis
cu

ss
ion

 
pa

pe
r 

Mi
ke

 R
ed

ma
n, 

Dir
ec

tor
 Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

Flo
od

 U
pd

ate
 

Up
da

te 
tbc

 
Dis

cu
ss
ion

 
pa

pe
r - 

tbc
 

Ge
off

 Be
er,

 Se
nio

r E
ng

ine
er 

(La
nd

 
Dr

ain
ag

e) 
Me

eti
ng

 D
ate

: 2
3 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
1 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

19
 O
cto

be
r 2

01
1 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 11
 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01
1 

Bu
dg

et 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 20
12

-13
 

Sc
rut

iny
 

Re
vie

w 
int

eri
m 

bu
dg

et 
pro

po
sa

ls 
20

12
-13

 an
d 

co
mm

en
t 

Dis
cu

ss
ion

 
pa

pe
r 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
, D

ire
cto

r R
es

ou
rce

s 

Wa
ste

 St
rat

eg
y –

 po
st 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

Oc
tob

er 
20

11
 

Re
vie

w 
the

 
im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e 
ne

w 
str

ate
gy

 an
d l

es
so

ns
 

lea
rne

d 
Re

po
rt 

Ro
b B

ell
, D

ire
cto

r O
pe

rat
ion

s 

Jo
int

 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y  

Sc
rut

iny
 

Up
da

te 
on

 pu
bli

c 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 
Dis

cu
ss
ion

 
pa

pe
r 

Tra
ce

y C
rew

s, 
Sp

ati
al 

Pla
nn

ing
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 1
8 J

an
ua

ry 
20

12
 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

12
 D
ec
em

be
r 2

01
1 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 6 
Ja
nu

ary
 20

12
 

Bu
dg

et 
pro

po
sa

ls 
20

12
-13

 
Sc

rut
iny

 
Re

vie
w 
fin

al 
bu

dg
et 

pro
po

sa
ls 
20

12
-13

 pr
ior

 
to 

Co
un

cil 
(10

 Fe
bru

ary
) 

Dis
cu

ss
ion

 
pa

pe
r 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
, D

ire
cto

r R
es

ou
rce

s 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 2
9 F

eb
ru
ar
y 2

01
2 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

25
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
12
 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 17
 Fe

br
ua

ry 
20
12
 

DR
AF

T C
orp

ora
te 

Str
ate

gy
 

20
12

-13
 

Sc
rut

iny
 

Re
vie

w 
DR

AF
T s

tra
teg

y 
for

 20
12

-13
 pr

ior
 to

 
 

Ric
ha

rd 
Gi
bs

on
, P

oli
cy 

an
d P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

Ma
na

ge
r 

Page 19



En
vir

on
me

nt 
O&

S C
om

mi
tte

e 2
01

1-2
01

2 w
ork

 pl
an

  
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
2 

 
 

Ite
m  

Pu
rp
os

e 
Ou

tco
me

 
Wh

at 
is 

req
uir

ed
? 

Le
ad

 O
ffic

er 
 \\m

ud
ata

\m
gd

ata
roo

t\A
ge

nd
aIt

em
Do

cs
\3\

2\0
\AI

00
00

20
23

\$y
isx

rrv
a.d

oc
 

 

Ca
bin

et 
(13

 M
arc

h) 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 3
0 M

ay
 20

12
 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

tbc
 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 18
 M

ay
 20

12
 

Flo
od

 U
pd

ate
 

Up
da

te 
Bia

nn
ua

l u
pd

ate
 on

 flo
od

 
pre

ve
nti

on
 in

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 

Dis
cu

ss
ion

 
pa

pe
r –

 tb
c 

Ge
off

 Be
er,

  G
eo

ff B
ee

r, S
en

ior
 

En
gin

ee
r (L

an
d D

rai
na

ge
) 

Me
eti

ng
 D
ate

: 1
1 J

uly
 20

12
 

Ch
air

s B
rie

fin
g: 

tbc
 

De
ad

lin
e f

or
 pa

pe
rs:

 29
 Ju

ne
 20

12
 

Th
ird

 an
nu

al 
rev

iew
 of

 th
e 

Gl
ou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 Ai
rpo

rt –
 G

ree
n 

Po
licy

 
Sc

rut
iny

 
Re

vie
w 
of 

the
 G

ree
n 

Po
licy

 
Re

po
rt 

Gi
ll M

orr
is,
 C

lim
ate

 C
ha

ng
e a

nd
 

Su
sta

ina
bil
ity 

Of
fic

er 

Ite
ms

 to
 be

 ad
de

d a
t a

 fu
tur

e d
ate

 

Gr
ee

n T
rav

el 
Pla

n 
tbc

 
Aw

ait
ing

 co
nfi

rm
ati

on
 re

: 
rel

ev
an

ce
 of

 ite
m 

fro
m 

Le
ad

 O
ffic

er 
 tb

c 
Ow

en
 Pa

rry
, H

ea
d o

f In
teg

rat
ed

 
Tra

ns
po

rt a
nd

 Su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 

Page 20



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

3  
EN

VIR
ON

ME
NT

 O
&S

 C
OM

MI
TT

EE
 A

ND
 R

EL
EV

AN
T C

AB
IN

ET
 W

OR
KI

NG
 G

RO
UP

S 2
01

1-2
01

2 

- 1
 - 

CO
MM

ITT
EE

 W
OR

KI
NG

 G
RO

UP
S 

WO
RK

IN
G 

GR
OU

P 
SC

OP
E 

/ O
UT

CO
ME

 
TIM

ES
CA

LE
 

ME
MB

ER
SH

IP 
LE

AD
 

OF
FIC

ER
 

Su
sta
ina

ble
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
of 

gre
en
 sp

ac
e  

Co
ns
ide

r p
ote

nti
al 
ch
an
ge
s t
o d

es
ign

 an
d 

ma
int
en
an
ce
 an

d r
ec
om

me
nd
 su
sta
ina

ble
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
pra

cti
ce
s. 

Co
ns
ide

r p
ote

nti
al 
for
 ch
an
ge
s t
o a

ll t
yp
es
 of
 

gre
en
 sp

ac
e t
o e

nc
ou
rag

e b
iod

ive
rsi
ty.
 

Aw
ait
ing

 
co
nfi
rm
ati
on
 

fro
m 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er 

Nig
el 
Br
itte
r 

Dia
ne
 H
ibb

ert
 

Pa
ul 
W
he
eld

on
 

Ba
rba

ra 
Dr
ive
r 

Va
ca
nc
y?
 

Ad
am

 
Re
yn
old
s 

 Cli
ma

te 
Ch
an
ge
 

(fo
rm
erl
y I
nte

rna
l  

Ca
rbo

n 
Re
du
cti
on
) 

Sc
op
e t
o b

e f
orm

all
y a
gre

ed
 fo
llo
win

g c
ha
ng
e  

of 
rem

it, 
bu
t li
ke
ly 
to 
inc
lud

e t
he
 fo
llo
win

g: 
Co
ns
ide

r a
nd
 su

pp
ort
 ca
rbo

n r
ed
uc
tio
n p

lan
s 

Inc
lud
ing

, o
pti
on
s f
or 
ren

ew
ab
le 
en
erg

y. 
Co
ns
ide

r p
ote

nti
al 
eff
ec
ts 
of 
clim

ate
 ch
an
ge
 on

 
Co
un
cil 
op
era

tio
ns
. 

W
ork

 w
ith
 es
tab

lis
he
d g

rou
ps
, e
.g.
 Lo

w 
Ca
rbo

n 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
, to

 in
flu
en
ce
 ot
he
r o
rga

nis
ati
on
s a

nd
 

lea
rn 
fro
m 
the

ir e
xp
eri
en
ce
. 

On
go
ing

 
Ian

 Bi
ck
ert
on
 

He
len

a M
cC
los
ke
y 

Pa
ul 
W
he
eld

on
 

Ja
ne
 G
riff
ith
s 

Gi
ll M

orr
is 

              

Page 21



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

3  
EN

VIR
ON

ME
NT

 O
&S

 C
OM

MI
TT

EE
 A

ND
 R

EL
EV

AN
T C

AB
IN

ET
 W

OR
KI

NG
 G

RO
UP

S 2
01

1-2
01

2 

- 2
 - 

CA
BI

NE
T W

OR
KI

NG
 G

RO
UP

S 
WO

RK
IN

G 
GR

OU
P 

SC
OP

E 
/ O

UT
CO

ME
 

TIM
ES

CA
LE

 
ME

MB
ER

SH
IP 

LE
AD

 
OF

FIC
ER

 
W
as
te 
&  

Re
cy
clin

g 
Mo

nit
or 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f th
e n

ew
 w
as
te 
&  

rec
yc
lin
g s
ch
em

e 
On
go
ing

 
Nig

el 
Br
itte
r 

Ja
ck
y F

let
ch
er 

Dig
go
ry 
Se
co
me

 
Ro
ge
r W

hy
bo
rn 

Ro
b B

ell
 

 Bu
ilt 
 

En
vir
on
me

nt 
Co
mm

iss
ion
ing

  
Re
vie
w 
 

Su
pp
ort
 th
e d

ev
elo
pm

en
t o
f a
n i
nit
ial
 re
po
rt t
o 

Ca
bin

et 
(26

 Ju
ly)
 on

 re
su
lts
 of
 pr
eli
mi
na
ry 
ne
ed
s 

an
aly
sis
 an

d s
co
pin

g a
nd
 fin

al 
rep

ort
 to
 C
ab
ine

t 
(27

 Se
pte

mb
er)
 w
hic
h w

ill 
se
t o
ut 
the

 st
rat
eg
ic 

dir
ec
tio
n f
or 
Bu
ilt 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
se
rvi
ce
s  

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11
 

Tim
 C
oo
pe
r 

Ba
rba

ra 
Dr
ive
r 

Be
rni
e F

ish
er 
 

Ja
ck
y F

let
ch
er 

Pe
te 
Je
ffri
es
 

He
len

a M
cC
los
ke
y 

Jo
hn
 R
aw
so
n 

Llo
yd
 Su

rge
no
r 

Gr
ah
am

e 
Le
wis

 

 

Page 22



 

   
 Page 1 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  
 

Information/Discussion Paper 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny 

11 May 2011 
Built Environment Commissioning Review 

This note contains information to keep Members informed of matters relating to the 
work of the Committee, but where no decisions from Members are needed 

1. Why has this come to scrutiny? 
1.1 The Built Environment Commissioning Review is one of 3 strategic projects using 

commissioning principles.  The review encompasses development management, 
strategic land use, urban design, building control & conservation.  

1.2 This matter has come to scrutiny because the review team is keen for Members to be 
engaged in the review as it progresses.  Engagement will be partly achieved by 
bringing key reports to this scrutiny committee for comment prior to Cabinet 
consideration. In addition a Cabinet Member Working Group has been established, 
and this group will be helping to steer officers in the delivery of proposed outcomes 
as the project progresses. 

1.3 The review is using commissioning principles to govern its approach.  These 
principles are embedded in the commissioning cycle (below) hopefully already 
familiar to Members from recent reports and presentations. 

 

 
It is important to stress that the Built Environment Review is in the first phase of the 
commissioning cycle – the analysis phase.  The review team considers the analysis 
phase as having 3 elements; (1) what we currently do; (2) what we want to do and (3) 
how best to do it.  The review is currently evaluating “what we currently do” and 

Agenda Item 8
Page 23



 

   
 Page 2 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  
 

moving onto “what we want to do” through the analysis of needs and outcomes. 
1.4 The purpose of this discussion note is to provide Members with an overview of the 

work undertaken so far. 
1.5 The project team will be reporting on progress to the 26 July Cabinet meeting and will 

be bringing the draft Cabinet report to this committee for comment prior to Cabinet.  It 
is anticipated at this time that the report will be asking Cabinet to confirm a direction 
of travel based on the work and findings to date and to seek agreement to more 
widely consult, both internally and externally, on the preliminary findings and in 
particular the outcomes for Built Environment in the future.  The intention would be to 
take a final report to cabinet in September. 

2. Progress to date 
A number of areas of work have been undertaken by the review team during this part 
of the analysis phase and the more significant of these are listed below and 
commented upon in the following sections of this discussion note. 
• Developing Cheltenham’s Commissioning Process and Approach 
• Background Research – Alternative Delivery Arrangements & Benchmarking 
• Needs Analysis and Prioritised Outcomes 
• Future Proofing 
• Systems Thinking 
 

2.1 Developing Cheltenham’s Commissioning Process and Approach 
2.1.1 In 2010, a number of organisations in Gloucestershire, led by the voluntary and 

community sector, collaborated to produce the ‘Good Commissioning Guide’ which 
the review is using as its principle guide. This document is available in the Members’ 
Room.  

2.1.2 The Built Environment and Leisure & Culture commissioning reviews are also 
providing an opportunity to “develop for real” the Council’s processes and approach 
to commissioning which will suit our own needs and requirements.  The “lessons 
learned” are being fed back into the Commissioning Programme Board for the benefit 
of future projects and reviews.   

2.2 Background Research - Alternative Delivery Arrangements & Benchmarking 
2.2.1 The project team felt it was important, in the early stages, to build its knowledge and 

understanding of other potential models of service provision which could deliver the 
outcomes for Built Environment.  The team also felt it was important to understand 
and learn the lessons where there had been failures as well as successes. 

2.2.2 The primary purpose of the benchmarking exercise was to gather information which 
can then be used to compare performance and costs with peers to support improved 
service improvement plans.  Cheltenham Borough Council submitted data on its 
income and costs to Cipfa; this was based upon one month’s activity and then 
multiplied up for the year.  97 other councils supplied data on a similar basis.  The 
benchmarking process involved choosing between 8 and 18 councils from a list of 
the 97 councils.  This data took into account information that had been supplied on 
costs, application numbers, fees, and total population.  Cheltenham Borough Council 
selected 11 similar authorities to compare itself with. 

Page 24



 

   
 Page 3 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  
 

2.2.3 By way of example the benchmarking data highlighted a number of gaps which the 
project team will need to challenge. 

 Cost of the planning service – the benchmarking exercise does not differentiate 
between the different types of applications received and this information would be 
useful in determining the potential for future income generation. 

 Speed of decision making – processing of applications (NI 157) is consistently above 
the benchmarking average, but it is not clear what benefit is derived from this.  
Further analysis of this will be useful. 

 Planning appeals – the number of planning appeals is less than 2% of the total 
number of applications, but it is not clear whether this is high or low compared with 
other authorities.  Cheltenham also has the highest costs and spends the most hours 
on appeals compared with other authorities.  Greater detail about the reasons for this 
will be useful in future reports. 

 The benchmarking exercise gives no indication of the percentage of appeals won/lost 
or the level of costs awarded against the council.  This information might be useful in 
determining how to manage future risk.  

2.2.4 The research work provided evidence that alternative models of service delivery do 
exist to deliver the outcomes for Built Environment.  One of the main drivers identified 
for the adoption of alternative delivery arrangements is the apparent financial benefit.  
Whilst acknowledging that financial incentives exist the project team are keen to 
ensure that its approach to the assessment of other delivery models is well 
considered and robust and is not wholly focused on financial savings. 

2.3 Needs Analysis and proposed outcomes 
2.3.1 A needs analysis is a way of estimating the nature and extent of the needs of our 

communities so that services can be planned accordingly. This will help 
commissioners and providers focus effort and resources where they are needed 
most.  

2.3.2 We recognise that the very nature of a needs analysis is going to throw up a range of 
requirements that are going to be both aspirational and beyond the scope of the  
Council to resolve. But the needs analysis is a start; and we can use versions of it 
with our partners to negotiate better outcomes for local people.   

2.3.3 The needs analysis and proposed outcomes have now been initially tested with 
members of the Cabinet Member Working Group.  The project team also recognises 
the need to consult on the needs analysis and proposed outcomes with internal and 
external stakeholders, eg, Cheltenham Strategic Partnership (CSP), Chamber of 
Commerce, Civic Society and other key groups in order that we arrive at a set of 
agreed prioritised outcomes. The proposals for further consultation will be highlighted 
in the Cabinet report. 

Page 25



 

   
 Page 4 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  
 

2.4 Future Proofing 
2.4.1 Two events have been run by the project team and attended by various members of 

the Built Environment management team.  The purpose of the events was to start to 
test -“future proof” - the Council’s current ability to deliver, on a sustainable basis, 
preliminary outcomes for the Built Environment activities which are in scope.  The 
future proofing events had 3 objectives; (a) to agree the drivers for the services 
(based on the needs analysis) over the next 5-10 years; (b) agree on the key 
desirable characteristics of service provision; (c) use the conclusions to inform further 
work. 

2.5 Systems Thinking 
2.5.1 The project team are keen to understand not only whether the in-house providers can 

deliver the prioritised outcomes but also what “waste” currently exists in the systems 
and processes.  This is an important factor to consider early on as any efficiency gain 
identified and achieved is a direct saving to the Council. 

2.5.2 Members will be aware that the council’s approach to identifying and removing waste 
from its systems and processes is known as ‘systems thinking’. Using this approach, 
an initial scoping exercise takes place in order to understand which areas can most 
benefit from further review. An ‘intervention team’, which includes representatives 
from the teams which actually ‘do’ the work, then completes a ‘check’ of the scoped 
areas. The ‘check’ exercise is based on observation of the service to understand its 
purpose, in customer terms, and the demand from customers. The focus is then 
placed on identifying ‘preventable’ demand and quantifying its impact on service 
performance. In later stages of systems thinking, the team redesigns the systems 
and processes so, as far as is possible, waste is removed. 

2.5.3 An initial scoping exercise has been undertaken and the findings have been shared 
with the project team.  It is clear that substantial savings can be realised particularly 
in the processing of planning applications and therefore further more detailed next 
phase analysis has been called for to clarify the extent of these tangible financial 
savings.   

3. Engagement with Members 
3.1 As mentioned earlier the project team are keen to engage with Members.  In these 

initial stages this will be achieved in 2 ways.  Firstly, through the establishment of a 
Cabinet Member Working Group, chaired by the Cabinet Member for Built 
Environment and which will work closely with the project team.  Secondly, through 
reporting to this overview and scrutiny committee.  Further thoughts on how members 
can further engage in the process will form part of the Cabinet report in July. 

4. Next Steps 
4.1 The Cabinet Member Working Group held its first meeting on 13 April where 

additional issues were raised.  The project team are considering these particular 
points and further dialogue with the Working Group is planned.  An initial report on 
the possible / potential outcomes of this commissioning exercise will be presented to 
Cabinet in July.  This overview and scrutiny committee will therefore have an 
opportunity to provide comment upon the Cabinet report prior to its consideration. 

 

Page 26



 

   
 Page 5 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  
 

Background Papers Good Commissioning Guide in Gloucestershire 
Contact Officer Grahame Lewis, Executive Director,           

01242 264312, 
grahame.lewis@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Accountability Councillor John Rawson 
Scrutiny Function Environment 
 
 
  

Page 27



Page 28
This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

Environment O&S, 11th May 2011  Street Scene Enforcement Review. Version 1 
 Page 1 Last updated 28 April 2011 
  
 

  
 

Information/Discussion Paper 
Environment O&S - 11th May 2011 

Street Scene Enforcement Review 

This note contains the information to keep Members informed of matters relating to 
the work of the Committee, but where no decisions from Members are needed 

1. Why has this come to scrutiny? 

1.1 The report seeks to update members on the current position in relation to Street 
Scene Enforcement and provides an update on the Briefing Note produced in 
March of this year.   

2. Summary of the Issue 

2.1 The Street Scene team of 6 officers was created in June 2010 following an 
operational review of the Council’s regulatory functions and an internal restructure 
merging Public Protection with the Operations Division. Clean, safe and attractive 
well managed streets are a fundamental part of quality of life in the District.  Clean 
and well managed environments also have a significant impact upon the 
perceptions of local people and of the services provided by the Council.  The 
functions covered by Street Scene Officers impact upon the lives of our 
Community and their perceptions towards crime and community safety.  

Agenda Item 9
Page 29



 

 

 

 

Environment O&S, 11th May 2011  Street Scene Enforcement Review. Version 1 
 Page 2 Last updated 28 April 2011 
  
 

2.2   Demand for the Service 

The demand for the service has at times outstripped capacity. Between 1st 
June 2010 and 30th April 2011 the team received more than 2000 requests 
for service by members of the public. This is in addition to the reactive work 
undertaken by the team and the demand placed on them to assist other 
service providers and partners.  

A range of joint working has taken place across service groups and teams 
and with partners including police Cheltenham Borough Homes. These 
include activities in relation to noise complaints, waste and street cleaning, 
planning, highway obstructions, flytipping and abandoned vehicles. Street 
Scene enforcement often requires close working relationships with other 
agencies.  

3. Summary of evidence/information 

3.1 There is a strong belief that enforcement works and that it is an essential, 
although by no means the only, factor in achieving environmental improvements 
in the town. Examples of successful enforcement activities have included the 
issuing of fixed penalty notices for litter and co-ordinated activity between the 
cleansing crews and street scene which has led to a significant reduction in litter 
in the town centre.  Pro-active education and advice is also seen as being a 
crucial part of enforcement as it has been proved that it is better to educate 
people not to commit offences than to prosecute them when they did.  

The most recent restructure within Public Protection (January 2011) merging 
street scene enforcement with community protection and licensing brought 

Page 30



 

 

 

 

Environment O&S, 11th May 2011  Street Scene Enforcement Review. Version 1 
 Page 3 Last updated 28 April 2011 
  
 

together key services within a single management structure. This has further 
enhanced the partnership work already in existence with the police and as a 
result a commitment has been given to provide the section with the full support of 
Police Officers and PCSO’s. These officers will be based within the Municipal 
offices from 1st June 2011. This will provide the service with the tools and 
community links needed to meet the diverse environmental crime challenges that 
we face within the Borough. The overall aim is to provide a citizen-focused 
service that responds to the needs of communities and individuals, and 
contributes to greater public confidence. 

4. Next Steps  

4.1 To undertake a further mapping exercise in order to ensure enforcement activities 
undertaken by the Council are co-ordinated. Street scene requires a whole 
partnership approach. Communication lines and linkages need to be strengthened 
both internally and externally. 

4.2 To develop a “whole street” approach to co-ordinating and improving street scene 
services by getting it right first time.   

4.3 To introduce a strong publicity campaign on environmental crime including 
publicising successful prosecutions. 

4.4 To ensure that enforcement officers within the different service areas work more 
closely and collectively become the “eyes and ears” of the Council. The existing 
Street Scene Co-ordination Group will be extended to ensure all regulatory 
services are represented. Improvements will be achieved through a joint service 
delivery improvement plan. 

Page 31



 

 

 

 

Environment O&S, 11th May 2011  Street Scene Enforcement Review. Version 1 
 Page 4 Last updated 28 April 2011 
  
 

4.5 To ensure the resources available to implement and enforce new legislation and 
existing and new powers are closely monitored in order to ensure the Council is 
using this range of powers to their full potential. 

4.6 Street Scene Officers should expand their pro-active role. This area has however 
been hampered due to the long term absence of one of the officers.  

4.7 To formalise the good working relationships which are already in place with 
partner agencies including the production of a memorandum of understanding. 

4.8 To encourage and ensure our communities become partners of Street scene so 
that they can take pride in their neighbourhoods and help tackle environmental 
crime. This is vital for creating and maintaining appropriate and lasting 
environmental improvements.  

4.9 To focus resources wherever possible on narrowing the gap in outcomes between 
the priority neighbourhoods identified and the rest of the Borough.   

4.10 To provide greater opportunities for front line enforcement officers to network 
and share expertise and ,where appropriate, generic enforcement capacity be 
developed where service need requires.  

4.11 To tackle illegal activities through a balanced and effective zero tolerance 
enforcement drive.  

4.12 To provide a unified service and inspection regime across the Borough changing 
our culture and behaviours to develop a “one team” approach.   

Background Papers None 

Page 32



 

 

 

 

Environment O&S, 11th May 2011  Street Scene Enforcement Review. Version 1 
 Page 5 Last updated 28 April 2011 
  
 

Contact Officer Barbara Exley, Head of Public Protection, 01242 
264220, barabra.exley@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Accountability Cllr Klara Sudbury  

Scrutiny Function Environment Overview and Scrutiny 

 

Page 33



Page 34
This page is intentionally left blank



   
 Page 1 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  
 

Information/Discussion Paper 
Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

11 May 2011 
Proposal to upgrade car park software 

and payment systems 
 

This note contains the information to keep Members informed of matters relating to 
the work of the Committee, but where no decisions from Members are needed 

1. Why has this come to scrutiny? 
Background 
 
During 2010/11 the Head of Integrated Transport & Sustainability initiated an audit review of 
Parking Services. This review found that over a number of years, little investment had been 
made in the parking management and operating systems at CBC. 
 
This paper sets out the rationale for proposed investment in improved car parking 
technology and offers members the opportunity to comment on, or endorse the proposals, 
prior to a decision regarding implementation. 
 
 
2. Summary of the Issue 
The review concluded that CBC should consider investment across the parking facilities 
portfolio.  This would help to ensure that we are ‘future-proofing’ the infrastructure that 
supports Cheltenham’s move towards becoming a “Smarter Travel Town”. In addition it 
would enable the Council to deliver cashable savings, improved customer satisfaction and 
better overall performance.  
 
The first stage of the investment is directed at the existing management and operating 
systems at Regent Arcade and Grosvenor Terrace car parks, which are now considered to 
be at the end of their expected life cycle.   
 
3. Summary of evidence/information 
As part of the review and evaluation process, CBC undertook a ‘soft market test’ by inviting a 
number of leading suppliers of parking management and operating equipment to present 
their systems. Part of the exercise was to explore the extent to which new operating systems 
can meet customer needs and expectations more fully than the systems we already have. 
 
It is clear from the review that the demand from customers for smarter choices is a key driver 
in the market place. It is therefore essential that CBC positions itself to meet that demand 
and ensure it is able to grow with the market as it evolves. Parking today is not just about the 
use and management of space . It is about enabling customers to have a pleasant and 
rewarding experience. In summary, visiting Cheltenham needs to be simple, seamless and 
hassle free. 

Agenda Item 10
Page 35



   
 Page 2 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  
 

 
In addition, we need to consider how we can support the “Cheltenham Experience”, by 
offering options such as incentivised parking and add-on services through which you can 
combine your day out in Cheltenham with a range of leisure and retail experiences. 
 
The key conclusions of our review are that our parking service needs to be customer led and 
that the customer experience can be significantly improved by advances in technology. For 
example Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) supports services like virtual permits, 
less manual engagement in the operation and the ability for the customer to self-manage 
their parking choices. There is also a demand for systems that can enable the use of smart 
cards, smart and android phone applications and cashless payment options.  
 
4. Next Steps - possible next steps for the committee to consider 
The right choice for CBC is clear: to move Cheltenham towards becoming a “Smarter Travel 
Town” by investing in management and operating systems that will address medium to long 
term customer needs,. This will have the benefit of reducing the current staffing need and 
facilitate a reduction in related revenue expenditure.  
 
Objectives 
 
The objectives of this investment programme would be as follows: 
 

1. To reduce the on-going cost of operating Regent Arcade car park, by installing a 
lower maintenance and more automated parking solution. This would provide a 
benchmark against which we could consider extending the same solution to the rest 
of the parking network;   

 
By not investing now we will continue to incur repair costs which are unpredictable, 
reactive and disruptive and are effectively propping up a worn out system. 

 
If the Regent Arcade upgrade is successful, similar arrangements would then be 
implemented in Grosvenor Terrace and subject to business case priority, could also 
form part of a wider upgrade of systems across CBC car parks from 2012-13 
onwards. 
 

2. To protect existing parking revenue streams and reduce reactive maintenance 
expenditure , by providing the customer with a reliable, accessible, easy to use and 
flexible parking solution; 
 

3. To ensure that our parking payment systems remain secure and compliant with 
industry standards; 
 

4. To provide a technology platform that supports CBC’s ‘Smarter Travel Town’ 
approach over the course of the next five to ten years; 
 

5. To meet the requirements set out in the bridging the gap programme for reducing 
staffing costs associated with operating Regent Arcade car park. 

 
It is important that members are involved in this process as part of the on-going development 
of Cheltenham’s Parking Strategy, therefore Councillor John Rawson, Cabinet Member for 
Built Environment has asked for the wider strategic issues to be further considered by the 
Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee at its next meeting. 
 

Page 36



   
 Page 3 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  
 

 
Background Papers 

 
None. 

Contact Officer Owen Parry, Head of Integrated Transport & 
Sustainability, 01242 77 4640, 
owen.parry@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Accountability Councillor John Rawson  
Scrutiny Function Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Page 37



Page 38
This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
11th May 2011  

 . Version 1 

 Page 1 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  

Information/Discussion Paper 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

11 May 2011 
Green Space Strategy 

This note contains the information to keep Members informed of matters relating to 
the work of the Committee, but where no decisions from Members are needed 

1. Why has this come to scrutiny? 
1.1 This is part of the scheduled review process for the Council’s Green Space Strategy.  
2. Background and History 
2.1 On 21st July 2009, Cabinet approved the Council’s Green Space Strategy, which set 

out the aims and specific objectives for green spaces in Cheltenham. 
2.2 An action plan was developed to implement the strategy, with review mechanisms to 

ensure that the milestones are met and adjustments made in line with the changing 
environment and changing priorities. 

2.3 This report sets out the work undertaken by officers to meet the objectives and raises 
some points for discussion and consideration.   

3. Summary of the Issues 
3.1 The Green Space Strategy review focuses on three key areas: 

(a) Milestones achieved in the delivery of the strategy 
(b) Areas for review and consideration 
(c) Priority to deliver new allotment plots for Cheltenham 

3.2 The Green Space Strategy covers a 15-year period, with scope to review and amend 
main areas of focus and priority. Therefore, this discussion paper highlights to 
members the milestones reached but also the current priorities and issues, enabling 
member discussion and input. 

4. Milestones Achieved in the Delivery of the Strategy 
4.1 Overall, good progress has been made in several key areas. Appendix 1 gives an 

update on each section of the Action Plan.  
4.2 Highlights include £750,000 raised in grants and £100,000 raised in in-kind 

contributions to fund dry stone walling on Leckhampton Hill. The Higher Level 
Stewardship agreement, which was signed in Spring 2011, will see over £60,000 in 
funding for the hill over the next 5 years.  

Agenda Item 11
Page 39



 

 

 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
11th May 2011  

 . Version 1 

 Page 2 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  

4.3 Successful applications for Playbuilder Funding have brought in over £200,000 for 
new play facilities in five areas over the last two financial years. The new facilities are 
located in Springfields Park, Agg Gardner, Benhall Open Space, QEII Playing Field 
and St Peters Park. 

4.4 Multi-use games areas (MUGAs) have now been installed in 6 locations (Grange 
Field, Agg Gardner, Springfields Park, Naunton Park, Clyde Crescent and Brizen 
Rec) and have proved to be very popular with young people. This was an age-group 
highlighted in the Green Space Strategy consultation. 

4.5 The management of allotments was recognised in a 2010 survey, with 80% of council 
allotment tenants finding the Council’s allotment service to be good or excellent. Over 
200 additional allotments have been created by renovating derelict areas and dividing 
large plots.  

4.6 Bio-diversity and climate change are being addressed through some changes to 
mowing regimes, development of local nature reserves and alternative and more 
sustainable forms of planting. Long grass and wildflower areas have been developed 
in Springfields Park, Naunton Park, Hatherley Park, Cox’s Meadow and Jenner 
Gardens. These increase bio-diversity (both flora and fauna) and reduce the amount 
of mechanical mowing. 

4.7 Special Events in parks and gardens have risen steadily over the last few years to the 
point where key town centre gardens are at capacity. The Parks Department also 
runs its own very successful Paws event and contributes to the Montpelier Fiesta. 

4.8 Three Green Flags were awarded in 2010 for Council parks and a fourth application 
has been made for Springfields Park in 2011. Springfields Park won a Planting 
Places award (Sustainability South West) in February 2011 and Jenner Gardens won 
a Civic Award and a Heart of England Neighbourhood Award in 2009. 

4.9 Parks and play areas have continued to have a very good safety record with weekly, 
monthly and annual inspections undertaken and quick response to reports of damage 
and vandalism. This has resulted in a very low accident rate and therefore no 
resulting claims from park users against the Council in the last two years. 

4.10 Partnership working with Friends groups, Community Services Unit and Youth 
Offending Service has significantly increased. The number of volunteer hours spent 
on shrubbery maintenance, litter picking, painting of railings and facilities, tree and 
shrub planting and fund raising is currently at its highest level. This is partly due to the 
good working relationships developed between Council staff and volunteer groups. 
This has helped to maintain standards despite budget reductions. 

4.11 Volunteer hours on allotments have also significantly increased. There are now 13 
on-site volunteer wardens assisting in the management of allotment sites. 

5. Areas for Review and Consideration 
5.1 The Green Space Strategy was written at a time when there was a stronger 

government focus on measuring and bench-marking. Many items in the strategy 
relate to the development of benchmarking of services, quality standards, measuring 
against standards, performance management and performance review. 

5.2 With reduced resources and the changing political environment, it follows that the 

Page 40



 

 

 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
11th May 2011  

 . Version 1 

 Page 3 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  

extent of these measuring activities be re-considered. 
5.3 The Parks Development Team has developed performance indicators (appendix 2), 

which it believes are a meaningful and useful measure of activity and achievement 
and it would welcome any comments or feedback before these may be implemented. 

6. Priority to Deliver New Allotments for Cheltenham 
6.1 In line with the Allotment Strategy Action Plan, approved by Cabinet on 26th October 

2010 and in accordance with the legislation relating to the statutory provision of 
allotments and the use of proceeds of sale of allotment land (Midwinter), there is now 
an urgent need to progress the identification of suitable land for allotments and the 
development of new sites. 

6.2 This will require input and collaboration between various Council departments.  
6.3 This project will require a sponsor who can bring together the various departments 

and ensure delivery in a short timescale of new allotment sites, in accordance with 
the methodology already approved.   

7. Next Steps  
7.1 The committee are invited to acknowledge the progress made in achieving the 

objectives detailed in the Green Space Strategy and to discuss the issues identified. 
7.2 An Environment Overview and Scrutiny working has been established ands a follow-

up meeting will be arranged to consider the provision of additional allotment land, in 
order to meet current demand, sustainable management practices and bio-diversity in 
green spaces.   
Appendices 1. Updated action plans 

2. Draft performance indicators for Green Space 
Management 

Background Papers 1. Cabinet Report and appendices 21st July 2009 
A Green Space Strategy for Cheltenham  

2. Cabinet Report and appendices 26th October 
2010: Allotment Strategy Review and New 
Action Plan 2010-2015 

3. Overview and Scrutiny (Environment) 
Committee 15th September 2010: Review of 
Allotment Strategy 

4. Overview and Scrutiny (Environment) 
Committee 11th June 2009: Draft Green Space 
Strategy 

Contact Officer Adam Reynolds, Green Space Manager, 
Operations  01242 774669, 
adam.reynolds@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Page 41



 

 

 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
11th May 2011  

 . Version 1 

 Page 4 Last updated 27 April 2011 
  

Accountability Roger Whyborn, Cabinet Member Sustainability, 
01242  231458, 
cllr.roger.whyborn@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Scrutiny Function Environment 
 

Page 42



Pa
rk 
Ra
ng
ers

: L
ec
kh
am

pto
n H

ill,
 U
se
 of
 G
ree

n S
pa
ce
 an

d C
om

mu
nit
y E

ng
ag
em

en
t

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n
Tim

eta
ble

Le
ad

 se
rvi

ce
Pa

rtn
ers

Re
so

ur
ce

 Im
pli

ca
tio

n
Up

da
te 

Ap
ril

 20
11

Im
ple
me

nt 
ex
ist
ing

 ac
tio
n p

lan
s s
uc
h t
he
 

Le
ck
ha
mp

ton
 H
ill, 
an
d d

ev
elo
p a

dd
itio
na
l 

pla
ns
 fo
r o
the

r k
ey
 si
tes

20
10
/11

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Fri
en
ds
 gr
ou
ps
, 

wid
er 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e e

xte
rna

l 
su
pp
ort

Dr
y s
ton

e w
all
 co

mp
let
ed
. T
ota

l o
f £
85
0,0

00
 

rai
se
d i
n g

ran
ts 
an
d i
n-k

ind
 sp

on
so
rsh

ip.
 

Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 un

de
rta
ke
n t
o f
urt
he
r e
nc
los
e 

ex
ten

siv
e g

raz
ing

 ar
ea
s. 
HL
S a

gre
em

en
t 

sig
ne
d a

nd
 as

so
cia
ted

 fu
nd
ing

 du
e t
o c

om
e 

on
-st
rea

m 
in 
Oc
tob

er 
20
11
, a
mo

un
tin
g t
o 

£6
0,0

00
 ov

er 
5 y

ea
rs.

Ide
nti
fy 
oth

er 
po
ss
ibl
e s

ite
s f
or 
ev
en
ts 

an
d a

cti
vit
ies
 to
 re
du
ce
 th
e i
mp

ac
t o
n 

cu
rre
ntl
y u

se
d s

ite
s.

20
13
/14

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Fe
sti
va
ls 
an
d 

ev
en
ts 
tea

m
Un
de
rw
ay
.

Re
vie
w 
sc
ale
 of
 fe
es
 an

d c
ha
rge

s f
or 
us
e 

of 
gre

en
 sp

ac
es

20
10
/11

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Pa
rks

 
De
ve
lop
me

nt 
Ma

na
ge
r

Un
de
rta
ke
n i
n A

utu
mn

 20
10
 fo
r la

nd
 hi
re 
in 

co
nn
ec
tio
n w

ith
 sp

ec
ial
 ev

en
ts.
 Fe

es
 an

d 
ch
arg

es
 in
 lin
e w

ith
 ot
he
r a
uth

ori
tie
s.

En
co
ura

ge
 gr
ea
ter
 co

mm
un
ity
 us

e o
f 

gre
en
 sp

ac
e

20
11
/12

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Fri
en
ds
 gr
ou
ps
, 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs,
 

res
ide
nts

Re
ve
nu
e i
nv
es
tm
en
t 

req
uir
ed

Un
de
rta
ke
n t
hro

ug
h s

up
po
rt o

f F
rie
nd
s 

gro
up
s (
e.g

. C
om

mu
nit
y P

rid
e G

ran
t fo

r a
 

fam
ily 
pic
nic
 in
 H
ath

erl
ey
 Pa

rk)
, P
AW

S e
ve
nt,
 

su
pp
ort
 of
 Pl
ay
 R
an
ge
r e
ve
nts

, C
om

mu
nit
y 

Ra
ng
er 
ev
en
ts,
 Ba

nd
s i
n t
he
 Pa

rk 
pro

gra
mm

e d
uri
ng
 su

mm
er 
mo

nth
s, 
pla
y 

are
a d

ev
elo
pm

en
t u
nd
ert
ak
en
 w
ith
 in
pu
t fr
om

 
loc
al 
fam

ilie
s. 
Als

o p
rom

oti
on
 of
 cl
ea
nli
ne
ss
 

an
d a

pp
rop

ria
te 
be
ha
vio
ur 
thr
ou
gh
 

en
for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tiv
itie
s.

W
he
re 
sit
es
 id
en
tifi
ed
 fo
r c
ha
ng
e o

f 
pri
ma

ry 
pu
rpo

se
, a
uth

ori
ty 
sh
ou
ld 
wo
rk 

wit
h s

tak
eh
old
ers

 to
 se

cu
re 
ex
ter
na
l 

fun
din
g t
o i
mp

lem
en
t c
ha
ng
es

20
11
/12

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Fri
en
ds
 gr
ou
ps
, 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs,
 

res
ide
nts

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e c

ap
ita
l 

inv
es
tm
en
t

Ma
pp
ing

 un
de
rta
ke
n i
n A

utu
mn

 20
10
 to
 

ide
nti
fy 
sit
es
 w
ith
 po

ten
tia
l fo

r c
ha
ng
e o

f u
se
. 

Ve
ry 
lim
ite
d n

um
be
r o
f s
ite
s i
de
nti
fie
d. 
Ne
xt 

ste
ps
 to
 ex

plo
re 
op
tio
ns
 w
ith
 Pr
op
ert
ies
 an

d 
As
se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t.

Page 43



Pa
rk 
Ra
ng
ers

: L
ec
kh
am

pto
n H

ill,
 U
se
 of
 G
ree

n S
pa
ce
 an

d C
om

mu
nit
y E

ng
ag
em

en
t

Int
rod

uc
e a

 m
ore

 st
ruc

tur
ed
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o 

co
mm

un
ity
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d e
ng
ag
em

en
t20

10
/11

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Ric
ha
rd 
Gi
bs
on
 

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e e

xte
rna

l 
su
pp
ort

To
 be

 di
sc
us
se
d w

ith
 R
ich
ard

 G
ibs
on
's 
tea

m 
as
 an

d w
he
n t
im
e a

nd
 re
so
urc

es
 al
low

.

Inv
es
t re

so
urc

es
 in
 de

ve
lop
ing

 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
 w
ork

ing
 so

 th
at 
ind
ivid

ua
ls 

an
d g

rou
ps
 ca

n r
ea
lise

 th
eir
 po

ten
tia
l

20
11
/12

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Ric
ha
rd 
Gi
bs
on
 

Re
ve
nu
e i
nv
es
tm
en
t 

req
uir
ed

Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 w
ork

ing
 de

ve
lop
ed
 w
ith
 Fr
ien
ds
 

Gr
ou
ps
, C
om

mu
nit
y P

ay
ba
ck
 te
am

, Y
ou
th 

Of
fen

din
g S

erv
ice
. F
urt
he
r d
ev
elo
pm

en
t m

ay
 

ha
ve
 re
ve
nu
e i
nv
es
tm
en
t im

pli
ca
tio
n. 

Ta
rge

t n
on
 us

ers
 an

d u
nd
er 
rep

res
en
ted

 
gro

up
s t
o b

ett
er 
un
de
rst
an
d t
he
ir v

iew
s 

an
d a

sp
ira
tio
ns
 fo
r g
ree

n s
pa
ce

20
10
/11

 
the

n a
ll 

ye
ars

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Ric
ha
rd 
Gi
bs
on
  

Co
mm

un
ity
 

ag
en
ts

Re
ve
nu
e i
nv
es
tm
en
t 

req
uir
ed
 / m

ay
 re
qu
ire
 

ex
ter
na
l s
up
po
rt

Fo
cu
s o

n y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
ha
s l
ed
 to
 in
sti
lla
tio
n 

of 
5 M

UG
As
 (A
gg
 G
ard

ne
r, S

pri
ng
fie
lds
 Pa

rk,
 

Cly
de
 C
res

ce
nt,
 G
ran

ge
 Fi
eld
, N
au
nto

n P
ark

 
an
d B

riz
en
 R
ec
.) T

his
 ha

s i
nc
rea

se
d p

ark
 

us
ag
e a

mo
ng
 th
is 
ag
e g

rou
p (
ide
nti
fie
d a

s a
 

pri
ori
ty 
in 
Gr
ee
n S

pa
ce
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
).

Page 44



Pa
rks

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t - 
Ma
pp
ing

 R
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
an
d P

lay
 Pr
ov
isi
on

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n
Tim

eta
ble

Le
ad

 se
rvi

ce
Pa

rtn
ers

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Im

pli
ca

tio
n

Up
da

te 
Ap

ril
 20

11

Ad
op
t th

e 1
0 d

es
ign

 pr
inc
ipl
es
 fo
r s
uc
ce
ss
ful
 pl
ay
 

sp
ac
es
 in
 th
e c

rea
tio
n o

f a
ll n
ew
 pl
ay
 ar
ea
s a

nd
 

the
 re
fur
bis
hm

en
t o
f e
xis
tin
g p

rov
isio

n.

All
 ye

ars
CB

C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Ca
pit
al 
inv
es
tm
en
t 

req
uir
ed
 fo
r a
ll n
ew
 

or 
ref
urb

ish
ed
 pl
ay
 

are
as

Ad
op
ted

 an
d o

n-g
oin
g. 
5 n

ew
 pl
ay
 ar
ea
s 

bu
ilt 
wit
h P

lay
bu
ild
er 
fun

din
g (
Ag
g G

ard
ne
r, 

Sp
rin
gfi
eld
s, 
Be
nh
all
 O
pe
n S

pa
ce
, Q

EII
 

Pla
yin
g F

iel
d a

nd
 St
 Pe

ter
s P

ark
) a
nd
 

oth
ers

 re
fur
bis
he
d a

s p
art
 of
 on

-go
ing

 
pro

gra
mm

e
Ad
dre

ss
 is
su
es
 of
 ch

ild
ren

’s 
pla
y, 
wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 

de
ve
lop
ers

 an
d o

the
r a
ge
nc
ies
 to
 co

ns
ide
r 

inn
ov
ati
ve
 st
ree

t d
es
ign

 so
lut
ion
s t
o l
oc
al 
pla
y 

pro
vis
ion
 an

d s
afe

 ac
ce
ss
 to
 pl
ay

All
 ye

ars
Ur
ba
n D

es
ign

Ad
op
ted

 an
d o

n-g
oin
g. 
De
pa
rtm

en
t in

pu
t 

int
o a

ll d
ev
elo
pm

en
ts 
wit
h a

 pl
ay
 el
em

en
t 

(cu
rre
ntl
y S

tar
ve
all
 Fa

rm
).

Ad
dre

ss
 an

y g
ap
s i
n c

urr
en
t p
lay
 pr
ov
isio

n t
hro

ug
h 

the
 cr
ea
tio
n o

f n
atu

ral
 pl
ay
.

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Ca
pit
al 
inv
es
tm
en
t 

req
uir
ed

Ad
op
ted

 an
d o

n-g
oin
g: 
Tre

e t
run

ks
 in
 Ag

 
Ga

rdn
ers

, b
ou
lde
rs 
in 
Sp
rin
gfi
eld
 Pa

rk 
an
d 

QE
2 a

nd
 ea

rth
 m
od
ell
ing

 (m
ou
nd
s).
 O
ve
r 

£2
00
,00

0 i
n P

lay
bu
ild
er 
fun

din
g 

su
cc
es
sfu

lly 
bid
 fo
r to

 pr
ov
ide
 fiv
e n

ew
 

are
as
 fo
r n
atu

ral
 pl
ay
. M

ea
do
ws
 an

d n
ati
ve
 

pla
nti
ng
s e

nh
an
ce
 th
e n

atu
ral
 ex

pe
rie
nc
e.

Co
nti
nu
e t
o m

ap
 ar
ea
s o

f n
atu

ral
 an

d s
em

i n
atu

ral
 

gre
en
 sp

ac
e t
ha
t fo

rm
 co

mp
on
en
ts 
of 
oth

er 
typ

es
 

of 
gre

en
 sp

ac
e. 

20
09
/10

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Sta
ff t
im
e

On
-go

ing
. R
eq
uir
ed
 fo
r fu

rth
er 
wo
rk 
to 

en
ha
nc
e b

io-
div
ers

ity
 an

d e
co
log

y i
n t
he
 

Bo
rou

gh
. 

Ex
ten

d t
he
 si
ze
 lim

it o
f 2
 he

cta
res

 do
wn
wa
rds

 to
 

se
e w

ha
t s
ite
s b

elo
w 
thi
s t
hre

sh
old
 co

uld
 

co
ntr
ibu
te 
to 
me

eti
ng
 th
e 3

00
m 
ac
ce
ss
ibi
lity
 

sta
nd
ard

.

20
09
/10

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Sta
ff t
im
e

On
-go

ing
.  

Re
pe
at 
the

 qu
ali
ty 
au
dit
 on

 a 
reg

ula
r b
as
is 
to 

me
as
ure

 ch
an
ge
  

20
11
/12

 an
d 

the
n e

ve
ry 

thr
ee
 ye

ars
.CB

C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e 

ex
ter
na
l s
up
po
rt

Tim
es
ca
le 
to 
be
 re
vie
we
d d

ue
 to
 le
ve
l o
f 

res
ou
rce

s r
eq
uir
ed
 fo
r th

is 
ac
tiv
ity
. T
o 

ex
plo
re 
us
e o

f ra
nd
om

 sa
mp

lin
g o

r fo
r k
ey
 

sit
es
 on

ly.

Page 45



Pa
rks

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t - 
Ma
pp
ing

 R
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
an
d P

lay
 Pr
ov
isi
on

Co
ns
ide
r p
ote

nti
al 
for
 ch

an
ge
 of
 us

e o
f lo

w 
qu
ali
ty 

low
 va

lue
 gr
ee
n s

pa
ce
s 

20
10
/11

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Pla
nn
ing

, 
wid

er 
sta

ke
ho
lde
rs

Sta
ff t
im
e

Ma
pp
ing

 un
de
rta
ke
n. 
Ve
ry 
sm

all
 nu

mb
er 
of 

sit
es
 id
en
tifi
ed
. T
o b

e p
rog

res
se
d w

ith
 

Pr
op
ert
ies
 an

d A
ss
et 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt.
 

Co
ns
ide
r th

e e
sta

bli
sh
me

nt 
of 
an
 in
de
x o

f lo
ca
lly 

list
ed
 pa

rks
 / p

ub
lic 
gre

en
 sp

ac
es
 in
 C
he
lte
nh
am

On
-go

ing
His

tor
ica
l e
lem

en
ts 
no
w 
for
m 
pa
rt o

f th
e 

loc
al 
ind
ex
 ad

mi
nis
ter
ed
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 

co
ns
erv

ati
on
 te
am

. 

Page 46



Lo
ca
l F
oo
d, 
Bi
o-d

ive
rsi
ty 
an
d S

us
tai
na
bil
ity

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n
Tim

eta
ble

Le
ad

 se
rvi

ce
 / 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
Pa

rtn
ers

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Im

pli
ca

tio
n

Up
da

te 
Ap

ril
 20

11

Pr
om

ote
 an

d f
ac
ilita

te 
loc
al 
foo

d p
rod

uc
tio
n w

ith
 

the
 lo
ca
l c
om

mu
nit
y

All
 ye

ars
CB

C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Vis
ion
 21

 
Un
ive
rsi
ty

Re
ve
nu
e 

inv
es
tm
en
t

All
otm

en
t s
tra
teg

y A
cti
on
 Pl
an
 ap

pro
ve
d 

Oc
tob

er 
20
10
 to
 fu
nd
 29

0 a
dd
itio
na
l 

all
otm

en
ts 
an
d a

dd
itio
na
l la
nd
 fo
r n
on
-

all
otm

en
t fo

od
 gr
ow
ing

 ac
tiv
itie
s e

.g.
 

so
cia
l e
nte

rpr
ise
s. 
20
0 a

dd
itio
na
l 

all
otm

en
ts 
cre

ate
d t
hro

ug
h r
en
ov
ati
on
 of
 

de
rel
ict
 la
nd
 an

d s
pli
ttin

g o
f la

rge
 pl
ots

.
Es
tab

lish
 w
ide
r c
om

mu
nit
y l
ink
s t
o s

up
po
rt l
oc
al 

foo
d p

rod
uc
tio
n a

nd
 pr
om

ote
 su

sta
ina
ble
 

ap
pro

ac
he
s t
o l
an
d m

an
ag
em

en
t

All
 ye

ars
CB

C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Vis
ion
 21

 
Un
ive
rsi
ty

On
-go

ing
 co

mm
un
ica
tio
ns
 w
ith
 Vi
sio
n 2

1, 
Sta

ble
 C
om

pa
ny
 an

d m
ore

 to
 de

ve
lop
 

joi
nt 
ap
pro

ac
he
s.

Im
pro

ve
 th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f c
yc
le 
pa
rki
ng
 an

d a
cc
es
s 

for
 pe

op
le 
wit
h d

isa
bil
itie
s a

t a
llo
tm
en
t s
ite
s

All
 ye

ars
CB

C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e 

ca
pit
al 

inv
es
tm
en
t

Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 un

de
rta
ke
n. 
Cy
cle
 pa

rki
ng
 

pro
vis
ion
 no

t re
qu
ire
d a

t p
res

en
t a
nd
 

ex
ist
ing

 ac
ce
ss
 de

em
ed
 su

ffic
ien
t. 

Ide
nti
fy 
an
d i
ntr
od
uc
e m

ec
ha
nis
ms

 to
 ce

leb
rat
e 

su
cc
es
s a

nd
 sh

are
 go

od
 pr
ac
tic
e

20
11
/12

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

CB
C 
Ma

rke
tin
g 

an
d 

co
mm

un
ica
tio
n

s t
ea
m

Pr
om

oti
on
 of
 Fi
es
ta 
in 
Mo

ntp
eli
er,
 Pa

ws
, 

Pla
y f
ac
iliti
es
, a
llo
tm
en
ts 
co
mp

eti
tio
n a

nd
 

mo
re 
in 
the

 lo
ca
l p
res

s. 
De
ve
lop
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 to
 tra

ns
lat
e r
ec
om

me
nd
-

ati
on
s o

f b
iod
ive
rity

 au
dit
 in
to 
me

as
ure

s t
o 

im
pro

ve
 bi
od
ive
rsi
ty 
ac
ros

s t
he
 bo

rou
gh

20
10
/11

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Pla
nn
ing

Sta
ff t
im
e

Un
de
rw
ay
. R
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s b

ein
g 

dra
wn
 up

 fo
r d
iffe

ren
t h
ab
ita
ts.
 

Co
ns
ide
r th

e r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s o

f th
e b

iod
ive
rsi
ty 

au
dit
 an

d t
he
 op

po
rtu
nit
ies
 to
 ad

dre
ss
 cl
im
ate

 
ch
an
ge
 w
he
n c

on
sid
eri
ng
 si
te 
sp
ec
ific
 or
 ge

ne
ric
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
pla
ns
.

20
09
/10

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Cli
ma

te 
Ch
an
ge
  / 

Su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 

Of
fic
er

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
pla
nn
ing

 m
ay
 

req
uir
e e

xte
rna

l 
su
pp
ort

On
-go

ing
.

En
su
re 
tha

t th
e w

ide
 ra
ng
e o

f o
pp
ort
un
itie
s t
o 

ad
dre

ss
 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
 ar
e f
ull
y c
on
sid
ere

d i
n 

str
ate

gic
 pl
an
nin
g, 
lan
d m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 se

rvi
ce
 

de
live

ry

20
09
/10

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Cli
ma

te 
Ch
an
ge
  / 

Su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 

Of
fic
er

Ca
pit
al 

inv
es
tm
en
t 

req
uir
ed

On
-go

ing
.

Ide
nti
fy 
op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 to
 re
fle
ct 
su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 

iss
ue
s a

nd
 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
 re
sili
en
ce

All
 ye

ars
CB

C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Cli
ma

te 
Ch
an
ge
  / 

Su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 

Of
fic
er

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e 

ini
tia
l 

inv
es
tm
en
t

Pr
om

oti
on
 of
 al
lot
me

nts
 an

d l
oc
al 
foo

d, 
su
pp
ort
 of
 Vi
sio
n 2

1 a
nd
 ot
he
r g
rou

ps
, 

ch
an
ge
 in
 m
ow
ing

 an
d p

lan
tin
g r
eg
im
es
.Page 47



Lo
ca
l F
oo
d, 
Bi
o-d

ive
rsi
ty 
an
d S

us
tai
na
bil
ity

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n
Tim

eta
ble

Le
ad

 se
rvi

ce
 / 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
Pa

rtn
ers

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Im

pli
ca

tio
n

Up
da

te 
Ap

ril
 20

11

De
ve
lop
 ac

tio
n p

lan
s f
or 
LN
Rs
 an

d o
the

r k
ey
 

sit
es

20
10
/11

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Fri
en
ds
 

gro
up
s, 
wid

er 
sta

ke
ho
lde
rs

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e 

ex
ter
na
l s
up
po
rt
Ge

ne
ric
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o n

atu
re 
res

erv
es
 

es
tab

lish
ed
. S
pe
cif
ic 
pla
ns
 al
so
 no

w 
be
ing

 
de
ve
lop
ed
 an

d n
atu

re 
res

erv
es
 be

ing
 

ac
tiv
ely
 m
an
ag
ed
. H
ed
ge
s h

av
e b

ee
n l
aid
 

at 
Gr
iffi
ths

 Av
en
ue
 N
atu

re 
Re
se
rve

 in
 

co
nju

nc
tio
n w

ith
 BT

CV
. O

the
r a
cti
vit
ies
 

inc
lud
e v

eg
eta

tio
n c

lea
ran

ce
, p
lan
tin
g, 

sp
ec
ies
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 su

pp
ort
 

(cr
ea
tio
n a

nd
 en

ha
nc
em

en
t o
f h
ab
ita
ts)
 

etc
.

Page 48



Pla
nn
ing

, D
ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 St
rat
eg
ic 
La
nd
 U
se

 in
 G
ree

n S
pa
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n
Tim

eta
ble

Le
ad

 se
rvi

ce
 / 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
Pa

rtn
ers

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Im

pli
ca

tio
n

Up
da

te 
Ap

ril
 20

11

Inv
es
tig
ate

 th
e p

os
sib
ility

 of
 co

un
ty 

wil
dli
fe 
sit
es
 to
 th
e w

es
t o
f th

e t
ow
n 

be
co
mi
ng
 Lo

ca
l N
atu

re 
Re
se
rve

s.

20
12
/13

CB
C 
Pa
rks

  
Pla

nn
ing

, w
ide
r 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e e

xte
rna

l 
su
pp
ort

No
 ex

ist
ing

 w
ild
life
 si
tes

 in
 th
is 
are

a.

Ad
dre

ss
 de

fic
ien
cie
s t
hro

ug
h t
he
 

pro
po
se
d N

ort
h W

es
t E
xte

ns
ion
 ho

us
ing

 
de
ve
lop
me

nt.

Lik
ely
 tim

eta
ble
 to
 be

 
de
ter
mi
ne
d

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

CB
C 
Pa
rks

Sta
ff t
im
e

No
rth
 W
es
t e
xte

ns
ion
 pl
an
s o

n h
old
. 

To
 be

 ad
dre

ss
ed
 th
rou

gh
 pl
an
nin
g 

pro
ce
ss
 an

d S
ec
tio
n 1

06
.

De
live

r o
pp
ort
un
itie
s f
or 
ad
dit
ion
al 
Lo
ca
l 

Na
tur
e R

es
erv

es
 w
ith
in 
the

 pr
op
os
ed
 

urb
an
 ex

ten
sio
ns

Lik
ely
 tim

eta
ble
 to
 be

 
de
ter
mi
ne
d

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

CB
C 
Pa
rks

Sta
ff t
im
e

No
rth
 W
es
t e
xte

ns
ion
 pl
an
s o

n h
old
. 

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 U
se
 in
pu
t th

rou
gh
 

pla
nn
ing

 pr
oc
es
s a

nd
 Se

cti
on
 10

6.

En
su
re 
tha

t th
e c

on
trib

uti
on
 of
 pr
iva
te 

gre
en
 sp

ac
e i
s r
ec
og
nis
ed
 fo
r it
s a

me
nit
y, 

bio
div
ers

ity
 an

d a
cc
es
sib
ility

 co
ntr
ibu
tio
n.

Lik
ely
 tim

eta
ble
 to
 be

 
de
ter
mi
ne
d

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

CB
C 
Pa
rks

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 U
se
 Te

am
 

de
ve
lop
ing

 ne
w 
pla
nn
ing

 gu
ida
nc
e 

do
cu
me

nts
.

Pr
ote

cte
d a

nd
 en

ha
nc
e t
he
 na

tur
al 

en
vir
on
me

nt 
of 
the

 bo
rou

gh
 th
rou

gh
 

su
sta

ina
ble
 m
an
ag
em

en
t p
rac

tic
es
 an

d 
pla
nn
ing

 po
licy

Lik
ely
 tim

eta
ble
 to
 be

 
de
ter
mi
ne
d

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

CB
C 
Pa
rks

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 U
se
 Te

am
 

de
ve
lop
ing

 ne
w 
pla
nn
ing

 gu
ida
nc
e 

do
cu
me

nts
.

En
su
re 
all
 de

ve
lop
me

nt 
op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 

res
pe
ct 
bio
div
ers

ity
 pr
inc
ipl
es
 an

d a
re 

pla
nn
ed
 fo
r n
atu

re 
co
ns
erv

ati
on
 be

ne
fits

Lik
ely
 tim

eta
ble
 to
 be

 
de
ter
mi
ne
d

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

CB
C 
Pa
rks

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 U
se
 Te

am
 

de
ve
lop
ing

 ne
w 
pla
nn
ing

 gu
ida
nc
e 

do
cu
me

nts
.

Pr
ote

ct 
all
otm

en
t la

nd
 fro

m 
the

 pr
es
su
res

 
of 
de
ve
lop
me

nt,
 ne

gle
ct 
an
d v

an
da
lism

All
 ye

ars
CB

C 
Pa
rks

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

On
go
ing

 re
ve
nu
e

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 U
se
 Te

am
 

de
ve
lop
ing

 ne
w 
pla
nn
ing

 gu
ida
nc
e 

do
cu
me

nts
. A
llo
tm
en
t s
ite
 se

cu
rity

 
ma

na
ge
d b

y P
ark

s D
ep
art
me

nt.
Ide

nti
fy 
op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 to
 in
cre

as
e 

pro
vis
ion
 of
 ne

w 
all
otm

en
ts 
or 
lan
d f
or 

loc
al 
foo

d p
rod

uc
tio
n

All
 ye

ars
CB

C 
Pa
rks

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

Ca
pit
al 
inv
es
tm
en
t 

req
uir
ed

All
otm

en
t 5
 ye

ar 
ac
tio
n p

lan
 

ap
pro

ve
d i
n O

cto
be
r 2
01
0 f
un
din
g 

de
ve
lop
me

nt 
of 
29
0 a

dd
itio
na
l 

all
otm

en
ts.

Page 49



Pla
nn
ing

, D
ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 St
rat
eg
ic 
La
nd
 U
se

 in
 G
ree

n S
pa
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n
Tim

eta
ble

Le
ad

 se
rvi

ce
 / 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
Pa

rtn
ers

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Im

pli
ca

tio
n

Up
da

te 
Ap

ril
 20

11

Co
nti
nu
e t
o r
ev
iew

 th
e p

oli
cy
 op

tio
ns
 

av
ail
ab
le 
for
 ea

ch
 gr
ee
n s

pa
ce

Ev
ery

 ye
ar

CB
C 
Pa
rks

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

Ex
erc

ise
 un

de
rta
ke
n t
o m

ap
 gr
ee
n 

sp
ac
e w

ith
 po

ten
tia
l fo

r c
ha
ng
e o

f 
us
e. 
Aw

ait
ing

 tie
-in
 w
ith
 Pr
op
ert
ies
 

as
se
t m

an
ag
em

en
t re

vie
w.

Co
mm

en
ce
 a 
pro

gra
mm

e o
f lo

ca
l 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 ab

ou
t th

e c
ha
ng
e o

f u
se
 of
 

low
 va

lue
 si
tes

On
 a 
sit
e b

y s
ite
 

ba
sis

CB
C 
Pa
rks

Fri
en
ds
 gr
ou
ps
, 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs,
 

res
ide
nts

. 
Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e e

xte
rna

l 
su
pp
ort

Pa
rks

 te
am

 cu
rre
ntl
y m

ap
pin
g a

nd
 

rev
iew

ing
 lo
w 
va
lue
 si
tes

. 

En
su
re 
tha

t th
e c

on
trib

uti
on
 of
 pr
iva
te 

gre
en
 sp

ac
e i
s r
ec
og
nis
ed
 fo
r it
s a

me
nit
y 

an
d b

iod
ive
rsi
ty 
co
ntr
ibu
tio
n.

20
09
/10

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

CB
C 
Pa
rks

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 U
se
 Te

am
 

de
ve
lop
ing

 ne
w 
pla
nn
ing

 gu
ida
nc
e 

do
cu
me

nts
.

Ex
plo
re 
an
d d

ev
elo
p l
oc
al 
sta

nd
ard

s f
or 

gre
en
 sp

ac
e p

rov
isio

n
20
09
/10

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

CB
C 
Pa
rks

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e e

xte
rna

l 
su
pp
ort

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 U
se
 Te

am
 

de
ve
lop
ing

 ne
w 
pla
nn
ing

 gu
ida
nc
e 

do
cu
me

nts
.

De
ve
lop
 a 
mo

re 
str
ate

gic
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o t
he
 

us
e o

f S
10
6 c

on
trib

uti
on
s a

nd
 se

ek
 to
 

all
oc
ate

 a 
pe
rce

nta
ge
 of
 al
l fu

nd
s t
o 

str
ate

gic
 le
ve
l s
ite
s

20
10
-20

11
CB

C 
Pa
rks

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

Re
str
ict
ed
 by

 cu
rre
nt 
sta

tut
ory

 
req

uir
em

en
ts.

Se
t a
 qu

ali
ty 
sta

nd
ard

 lin
kin
g c

atc
hm

en
t 

to 
a r
ec
og
nis
ed
 na

tio
na
l q
ua
lity
 m
ea
su
re

20
10
/11

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 

Us
e

CB
C 
Pa
rks

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 U
se
 Te

am
 

de
ve
lop
ing

 ne
w 
pla
nn
ing

 gu
ida
nc
e 

do
cu
me

nts
.

Page 50



La
nd
sc
ap
e S

erv
ice
s

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n
Tim

eta
ble

Le
ad

 se
rvi

ce
Pa

rtn
ers

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Im

pli
ca

tio
n

Up
da

te 
Ap

ril
 20

11

Cla
rify

 la
nd
 ow

ne
rsh

ip 
an
d m

an
ag
em

en
t re

sp
on
sib
ility

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 

/ L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

Se
rvi
ce
s

Pr
oje

ct 
un
de
rw
ay
 by

 La
nd
sc
ap
e 

Se
rvi
ce
s T

ea
m.

Inc
rea

se
 pe

op
le’
s a

cc
es
s t
o n

atu
ral
 gr
ee
n s

pa
ce
 

thr
ou
gh
 ch

an
gin

g m
an
ag
em

en
t re

gim
es

20
10
/11

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 

/ L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

Se
rvi
ce
s

Fri
en
ds
 

gro
up
s, 
wid

er 
sta

ke
ho
lde
rs

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e 

ex
ter
na
l s
up
po
rt

Tre
e t
run

ks
 in
 Ag

 G
ard

ne
rs,
 

bo
uld
ers

 in
 Sp

rin
gfi
eld
 Pa

rk 
an
d 

QE
2 a

nd
 ea

rth
 m
od
ell
ing

 
(m
ou
nd
s).
 O
ve
r £
20
0,0

00
 in
 

Pla
yb
uil
de
r fu

nd
ing

 su
cc
es
sfu

lly 
bid
 fo
r to

 pr
ov
ide
 fiv
e n

ew
 ar
ea
s 

for
 na

tur
al 
pla
y. 
Me

ad
ow
s a

nd
 

na
tiv
e p

lan
tin
gs
 en

ha
nc
e t
he
 

na
tur
al 
ex
pe
rie
nc
e. 

Ad
op
t m

ore
 su

sta
ina
ble
 m
an
ag
em

en
t p
rac

tic
es
 on

 
co
un
cil 
lan
d  
us
ing

 ev
ide
nc
e f
rom

 th
e b

iod
ive
rsi
ty 
au
dit

20
09
/10

CB
C 
Pa
rks

Fri
en
ds
 

gro
up
s, 
wid

er 
sta

ke
ho
lde
rs

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e 

inv
es
tm
en
t

Im
ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f s
tan

din
g a

nd
 

de
ad
 w
oo
d p

oli
cy
, c
rea

tio
n o

f 
me

ad
ow
s a

nd
 gr
as
sla
nd
s a

nd
 

res
ult
ing

 ch
an
ge
s i
n  
mo

win
g 

reg
im
es
, h
ab
ita
t c
rea

tio
n i
n 

na
tur
e r
es
erv

es
 an

d p
ark

s, 
su
sta

ina
ble
 an

d i
nd
ige

no
us
 

pla
nti
ng
 in
cre

as
ed
.

Pr
ote

ct 
an
d e

nh
an
ce
 th
e n

atu
ral
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
of 
the

 
bo
rou

gh
 th
rou

gh
 su

sta
ina
ble
 m
an
ag
em

en
t p
rac

tic
es
 

an
d p

lan
nin
g p

oli
cy

Lik
ely
 

tim
eta

ble
 to
 

be
 

de
ter
mi
ne
d

Str
ate

gic
 La

nd
 U
se
 

an
d s

ee
 ab

ov
e r
e 

JP

As
 ab

ov
e a

nd
 vi
a d

ev
elo
pm

en
t 

of 
pla
nn
ing

 gu
ida
nc
e 

do
cu
me

nts
.

Ma
na
ge
 an

d c
are

 fo
r th

e t
wo
 pa

rks
 in
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 (i.
e. 

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pa

rk 
an
d B

ou
nc
er’
s L

an
e C

em
ete

ry)
 on

 th
e 

En
gli
sh
 H
eri
tag

e “
Re
gis
ter
 of
 Li
ste

d P
ark

s a
nd
 G
ard

en
s 

of 
Sp
ec
ial
 H
ist
ori
c I
nte

res
t in

 En
gla

nd
” in

 ac
co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h t
he
 le
gis
lat
ion
 co

ve
rin
g t
he
m 
an
d i
n c

on
su
lta
tio
n 

wit
h E

ng
lish

 H
eri
tag

e’s
 H
ist
ori
c L

an
ds
ca
pe
 ad

vis
ors

On
-go

ing
CB

C 
Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 

/ L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

Se
rvi
ce
s

Fri
en
ds
 of
 

Pit
tvi
lle
 / P

AR
A 

En
gli
sh
 

He
rita

ge

Sta
ff t
im
e

On
-go

ing

Page 51



La
nd
sc
ap
e S

erv
ice
s

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n
Tim

eta
ble

Le
ad

 se
rvi

ce
Pa

rtn
ers

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Im

pli
ca

tio
n

Up
da

te 
Ap

ril
 20

11

En
su
re 
tha

t th
e p

rin
cip
les
 of
 re
sto

rat
ion
 an

d 
ma

int
en
an
ce
, a
s s
et 
ou
t in

 th
e r
ec
en
tly
 pr
ep
are

d 
co
ns
erv

ati
on
 pl
an
 fo
r P
ittv
ille
 Pa

rk 
are

 im
ple
me

nte
d 

wh
en
 re
sto

rat
ion
 or
 m
ain
ten

an
ce
 w
ork

s a
re 
un
de
rta
ke
n 

in 
the

 pa
rk

20
10
-11

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 

/ L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

Se
rvi
ce
s

Fri
en
ds
 of
 

Pit
tvi
lle
 / P

AR
A 

En
gli
sh
 

He
rita

ge

Sta
ff t
im
e

On
-go

ing

En
su
re 
tha

t a
ll f
utu

re 
ma

int
en
an
ce
 an

d p
lan
tin
g p

lan
s 

for
 M
on
tpe

lie
r P
ark

 ar
e i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 th
e a

im
s o

f 
the

 R
es
tor
ati
on
 m
as
ter
 pl
an
, a
s u

nd
ert
ak
en
 du

rin
g 

rec
en
t re

sto
rat
ion
.

On
-go

ing
CB

C 
Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 

/ L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

Se
rvi
ce
s

Sta
ff t
im
e

On
-go

ing

Re
vie
w 
wo
rki
ng
 pr
ac
tic
es
 an

d i
de
nti
fy 
tar
ge
ts 
an
d 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 th
at 
co
ntr
ibu
te 
to 
an
 ov

era
ll 

sy
ste

m 
of 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 de

live
r p
oli
cy
 

an
d s

tra
teg

ic 
ob
jec
tiv
es
.

20
10
/11

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 

/ L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

Se
rvi
ce
s

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e 

ex
ter
na
l s
up
po
rt

Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 ha

s w
ritt
en
 dr
aft
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
dic
ato

rs 
for
 

rev
iew

.

En
ga
ge

res
ide
nts

an
d
se
rvi
ce

us
ers

in
the

se
ttin

g
an
d

mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
 st
an
da
rds

20
11
/12

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 

/ L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

Se
rvi
ce
s

Fri
en
ds
 

gro
up
s, 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs,
 

res
ide
nts

No
t p
rio
rity

 gi
ve
n e

xis
tan

ce
 of
 

na
tio
na
l s
tan

da
rds

 an
d v

ery
 

lim
ite
d r
es
ou
rce

s t
o u

nd
ert
ak
e 

thi
s. 
Gr
ee
n F

lag
 st
an
da
rds

 us
ed
 

for
 pa

rks
 an

d 1
0 P

rin
cip
les
 fo
r 

pla
y a

rea
s.

De
ve
lop
 m
ea
nin
gfu

l b
en
ch
ma

rki
ng
 of
 th
e s

erv
ice
 in
 

ter
ms

 of
 us

ag
e, 
sa
tis
fac

tio
n a

nd
 qu

ali
ty 
(an

d c
os

t)
20
11
/12

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 

/ L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

Se
rvi
ce
s

Lim
ite
d r
es
ou
rce

s t
o u

nd
ert
ak
e 

me
as
uri
ng
 ac

tiv
itie
s, 
su
rve

ys
 

etc
. G

ree
n F

lag
 cr
ite
ria
 to
 be

 
us
ed
 w
he
re 
req

uir
ed
 fo
r 

sta
nd
ard

s. 
So
me

 be
nc
h-m

ark
ing

 
be
ing

 un
de
rta
ke
n t
o c

om
pa
re 

co
sts
 of
 se

rvi
ce
s b

etw
ee
n 

au
tho

riti
es
.

Page 52



La
nd
sc
ap
e S

erv
ice
s

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n
Tim

eta
ble

Le
ad

 se
rvi

ce
Pa

rtn
ers

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Im

pli
ca

tio
n

Up
da

te 
Ap

ril
 20

11

Re
vie
w 
the

 ap
pro

ac
h t
o q

ua
lity
 st
an
da
rds

 fo
r g
ree

n 
sp
ac
e a

nd
 pr
od
uc
e a

 re
ali
sti
c p

lan
 of
 ho

w 
to 
 ra
ise
 

sta
nd
ard

s.

20
11
/12

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 

/ L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

Se
rvi
ce
s

Ma
y r
eq
uir
e 

ex
ter
na
l s
up
po
rt

Re
vie
we
d. 
Ex
ist
ing

 na
tio
na
l 

sta
nd
ard

s (
Gr
ee
n F

lag
 an

d 1
0 

Pr
inc
ipl
es
 fo
r P
lay
) c
on
sid
ere

d 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 an
d u

se
ful
 as

 
sta

nd
ard

s. 
Pla

ns
 in
clu
de
 re
vie
w 

of 
nu
mb

er 
of 
pa
rks

 en
ter
ed
 fo
r 

Gr
ee
n F

lag
 st
atu

s (
res

ou
rce

 
im
pli
ca
tio
n) 
an
d m

ea
su
res

 to
 

inc
rea

se
 nu

mb
er 
of 
vo
lun
tee

r 
ho
urs

 to
 su

pp
lem

en
t d
ec
rea

sin
g 

de
pa
rtm

en
t re

so
urc

e.

Inv
es
t in

 ne
w 
tec

hn
olo
gy
 to
 su

pp
ort
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to
 th
e 

se
rvi
ce
 an

d g
rea

ter
 ef
fic
ien
cie
s

20
09
/10

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 

/ L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

Se
rvi
ce
s

Ca
pit
al 
inv
es
tm
en
t 

req
uir
ed

Re
vie
w 
of 
mo

win
g r
eg
im
es
. L
es
s 

fre
qu
en
t m

ow
ing

 re
qu
ire
s 

dif
fer
en
t m

ac
hin
ery

. U
se
 of
 

ex
ter
na
l c
on
tra
cto

rs 
to 
pro

vid
e 

sp
ec
ial
ist
 su

pp
ort
 e.
g. 
for
 cu

ttin
g 

of 
flo
we
r m

ea
do
ws
 et
c.

Re
-al
ign

 re
so
urc

es
 an

d e
ns
ure

 th
e c

orr
ec
t s
kill
 se

ts 
are

 
in 
pla
ce
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 st
rat
eg
ic 
ob
jec
tiv
es

20
09
/10

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 Se
rvi
ce
 

/ L
an
ds
ca
pe
 

Se
rvi
ce
s -
 AR

 & 
JR

HR
 Tr
ad
e 

Un
ion
s

Re
-st
ruc

tur
e u

nd
ert
ak
en
 in
 20

10
 

in 
Op

era
tio
ns
 D
ivis

ion
.

Page 53



Tr
ee
s

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n
Tim

eta
ble

Le
ad

 se
rvi

ce
Pa

rtn
ers

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Im

pli
ca

tio
n

Up
da

te 
Ap

ril
 20

11

Inc
rea

se
 tre

e r
es
ou
rce

s t
o r
efl
ec
t th

e 
bo
rou

gh
’s 
ag
ein
g t
ree

 po
pu
lat
ion

20
09
/10

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
  

Co
un
try
 C
ou
nc
il

No
 in
cre

as
e i
n c

ap
ita
l b
ud
ge
t b
ut 

pu
bli
c d

on
ati
on
s f
or 
ne
w 
tre
e p

lan
tin
g 

ha
ve
 ris

en
 sh

arp
ly 
in 
rec

en
t y
ea
rs.
 

Inv
es
t in

 a 
co
mp

ute
ris
ed
 sy
ste

m 
for
 

rec
ord

ing
 th
e t
ree

 st
oc
k a

nd
 lin
k t
his
 

to 
its
 G
IS 
ma

pp
ing

 sy
ste

ms

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

No
 fu
nd
ing

 fo
r n
ew
 tre

es
 co

mp
ute

r 
sy
ste

m.
 Pr
ev
iou
s s
ys
tem

 re
-in
sta

ted
. 

No
t y
et 
GI
S c

om
pa
tib
le.
 C
urr
en
tly
 

inv
es
tig
ati
ng
 w
he
the

r a
 ne

w 
se
rvi
ce
-

sp
ec
ific
 sy
ste

m 
co
uld
 be

 bo
ug
ht 
an
d 

sh
are

d w
ith
 ne

igh
bo
uri
ng
 au

tho
riti
es
.

Ma
ke
 th
e T

ree
 Pr
es
erv

ati
on
 O
rde

r 
da
tab

as
e a

va
ila
ble
 to
 th
e g

en
era

l 
pu
bli
c

TP
O 
da
tab

as
e a

lm
os
t re

ad
y t
o g

o 
on
lin
e. 
De
cis
ion
 no

t to
 pu

bli
sh
 un

til 
ce
rta
in 
it i
s c
om

ple
te 
(an

tic
ipa
ted

 by
 

mi
d /
 en

d 2
01
1).

De
ve
lop
 a 
mo

re 
co
ns
ist
en
t a
pp
roa

ch
 

to 
the

 m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f h
igh

wa
y t
ree

s 
wit
h G

lou
ce
ste

r H
igh

wa
ys

CB
C 
Pa
rks

 
Se
rvi
ce

Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
  

Co
un
try
 C
ou
nc
il

Fo
rm
al 
qu
art
erl
y m

ee
tin
gs
 ta
ke
 pl
ac
e 

to 
dis
cu
ss
 is
su
es
 an

d d
ev
elo
p 

pro
toc

ol.
 

Page 54



Performance Indicators for Parks Development Team 
 
 

1.    Quality Green Space: Number of Green Flag awards achieved for Cheltenham 
(National quality standard. Currently 3 awards. 4 applications for 2011. Increased 
number of applications will depend on resources) 
 
 

2. Health & Safety: Number of green space and play inspections undertaken  
(number of green space inspections, play area weekly visual inspections and monthly 
inspections and expressed as a percentage of required/scheduled inspections) 
 
 

3. Tree Inspections: Number of health and safety inspections  
(expressed as a number and as percentage of scheduled health and safety inspections) 
 
For additional performance indicators for trees, refer to Planning Department 
 
 

4. Play Spaces: Number of Play Spaces improved (major and minor refurbishments) 
 
 

5. Bio-Diversity: Number of measures taken to improve habitats for wildlife / bio-diversity 
(number of major and minor measures implemented)  
 
 

6. Allotments: Progress towards bridging the gap between income and expenditure 
(5 year time-frame. Achieved through budget setting process so annual measure) and 
Progress towards creation of 290 additional allotment plots as per Action Plan 
 
 

7. Volunteer Contribution:  Number of volunteer/community service days spent on 
green space projects and estimated monetary value of contribution (£50/day equivalent) 
 
 

8. Funding: Amount of external funding gained to finance park development projects 
(through grants and sponsorship and in conjunction with Friends groups and others) 
 

Page 55



Page 56
This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 DRAFT Environment Overview & Scrutiny Work Plan 2011-12
	2011_05_11_ENV_7_Appendix_1_proposed_scrutiny_topics
	2011_05_11_ENV_7_Appendix_2_Draft_work_plan_2011-12
	2011_05_11_ENV_7_Appendix_3_working_groups

	8 Built Environment Services - Commissioning Project
	9 Street Scene enforcing review
	10 Regent Arcade and Grosvenor Terrace parking
	11 Green Space Strategy
	2011_09_11_ENV_11_Appendix_1_GSS_Action_Plans
	2011_05_11_ENV_11_Appendix_2_Performance_Indicator


